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The translation into Chinese language of this annual report is for reference only.
In case of any inconsistency, the English version shall prevail.
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Financial Results and Business Review

| would like to report the audited results of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2017. During the year, the Group recorded a profit from operations
before valuation changes in investment properties of HK$552.2 million
(2016: HK$558.5 million) and a loss attributable to equity shareholders of
HK$90.6 milion (2016: a profit of HK$439.0 million). The loss was mainly due
to the net valuation losses on investment properties of HK$628.3 million
(2016: net valuation gains of HK$410.5 million) which outweigh the profit
from operations. The valuation changes will only affect the accounting profit
or loss but not the cash flow of the Group. Details of the financial results and
business performance and development are set out in the Directors’ Report

on pages 51 to 69.

Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend a final dividend of HK$0.23 per share
for the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$0.23 per share). As the
Company paid an interim dividend of HK$0.23 per share during the year
(2016: HK$0.23 per share), the total distribution will be HK$0.46 per share
for the year (2016: HK$0.46 per share).

Annual General Meeting
The annual general meeting of members of the Company will be held on

Tuesday, 12 September 2017.

Acknowledgement
Finally, on behalf of the Board, | wish to thank all our staff for their devotion
and dedication, and would like to thank our professional advisors and our

members for their support in the past year.

Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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ISQUARE

iISQUARE is located in the heart of Tsim Sha Tsui at the intersection of
Nathan Road and Peking Road. It is the first one-stop shopping and
entertainment complex linked to Tsim Sha Tsui MTR station. This complex
provides 56,000 square metres of space comprising a shopping podium,

cinema box and tower.

The podium is a vibrant new hub for world-class fashion and lifestyle brands,
complemented by five grand cineplexes, including a 448-seat digital IMAX
theatre. ISQUARE also features fine-dining restaurants and lifestyle services

in its iconic tower.

Goodluck Industrial Centre
Four floors of Goodluck Industrial Centre belong to the Company. There are
automobile showrooms, vehicle workshops, carparking spaces and a petrol-

filling station. The centre is located in Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company recognises its responsibilities to shareholdersNete and
is therefore committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. To accomplish this, the Company has reviewed its practices
and procedures, and identified and formalised appropriate measures and

policies.

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Company complied
with all the code provisions, where applicable, set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing

Rules”), except for the deviations as disclosed hereunder:

Code Provision A.1.8: Appropriate insurance cover

in respect of legal action against directors should be
arranged

Currently, the Company does not have insurance cover for legal action
against its Directors. The Board believes that with the current risk
management and internal control systems and the close supervision of the
management, the Directors’ risk of being sued or getting involved in litigation
in their capacity as Directors is relatively low. Benefits to be derived from
taking out insurance may not outweigh the cost. Despite it, every Director is,
subject to the provisions of the applicable laws, indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities
he/she may sustain or incur in or about the execution of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company. In view of the above, the Board considers that the Directors’

exposure to risk is manageable.

Note: “shareholder” shall have the same meaning as that ascribed to “member” under
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance”) throughout this annual report.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision A.2.1: The roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separated and performed by two
individuals

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong is both the Chairman and chief executive of the
Company. To avoid concentration of power and authority in any one
individual, day-to-day management of the Company’s business is shared by
Executive Directors whilst formulation of objectives and strategic decisions
are collectively made by the Board. In addition, the Board comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors with differing expertise/calibre who can
provide a “check and balance” effect on the management through their high
attendance at board meetings and therefore ensuring a balance of power.
Given consideration to the aforesaid, the Board of Directors is of the view
that the current structure does not have any adverse effect on the Company
and believes that this structure enables the Group to make and implement

decisions promptly and efficiently.

Code Provision B.1.5: Remuneration details of senior
management should be disclosed by band in annual
reports

The remuneration details of the senior management are not disclosed by
band in the annual report. To ensure they are remunerated at a reasonable
but not excessive rate, none of them is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration or related to the remuneration committee members (who
are authorised to collectively determine the remuneration of the senior
management based on a number of factors set out in the Company’s
remuneration policy). The Directors consider that the non-disclosure does not
pose any negative impact on the Company. On the contrary, the disclosure
of the remuneration details of the senior management may cause undue
comparison and discontent among staff members, and would unnecessarily
provide highly sensitive and confidential information to competitors and other
third parties looking to recruit the senior management. In light of the above,
the Directors are of the view that the disclosure of such information would
neither provide pertinent information in furtherance of corporate governance,

nor be in the interests of the members of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision C.2.5: Issuer should have an internal
audit function and review the need for one in case of
its absence annually

At present, the Company does not have an internal audit function. The Board
reviewed the need for setting up an internal audit function during the year
under review and considered that there was no such an immediate need
after taking into account the Group’s current circumstances, such as the
focused nature and geographical spread of business, the relatively simple
operating structure and small size of the Group and the close involvement
and supervision of the management in daily operation, which could provide
sufficient risk management and internal control for the Group. Despite it,
the Board has taken initiatives to promote the adequacy and effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems by creating a
control environment across the Group (such as building up a corporate
culture based on sound business ethics and accountability through the
implementation of “whistle-blowing” arrangements and procedure manuals
with defined roles, responsibilities and reporting lines) and putting control
activities in place (such as conducting group-wide risk assessment exercise
regularly). In addition, where the external auditor of the Company considers
any internal controls that are relevant to the audit of the financial statements,
it will report to the Audit Committee any significant deficiencies in internal

control identified during the audit.

In view of the above considerations and the potential cost to be involved, the
Board is of the opinion that it is not cost effective to set up and maintain an
internal audit function and that the existing control mechanism could justify
its absence for the time being. Nonetheless, the Board will review the need

for an internal audit function on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Practices (Continued)

Code Provision F.1.3: The company secretary

should report to the board chairman and/or the chief
executive

Instead of reporting to the Chairman (who is also the chief executive of the
Company), the company secretary reports directly to the deputy chairman.
Since the company secretary is located in the same office as the deputy
chairman and they work closely on a day-to-day basis, direct reporting
to the deputy chairman can provide for a prompt and timely response to
issues which require immediate attention. On the other hand, the Chairman
keeps having ongoing discussion and dialogue with the deputy chairman
on business affairs, in particular corporate governance and financial issues,
which enables him to fully understand the operation of the Company and
manage it in an effective manner. Taking into account of the above, the

Board considers that the current reporting line is apposite to the Company.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
its code for dealing in securities in the Company by its Directors (“Model
Code”). Specific enquiry has been made to all Directors of the Company
as to whether they have complied with or whether there has been any
non-compliance with the Model Code, and all Directors have confirmed
compliance with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the

financial year ended 31 March 2017.
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Board of Directors
The Board of Directors during the financial year ended 31 March 2017

comprised the following Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman)

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman)
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi

Mr Cheong Sim Lam

Miss Cheong Chong Ling

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

Mr Tse Pang Yuen

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (who is both the Chairman and chief executive
of the Company), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and
Mr Cheong Sim Lam are brothers. Miss Cheong Chong Ling is the daughter
of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim and the niece of Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong,
Cheong Keng Hooi and Cheong Sim Lam. Some of the Directors who are

members of the Cheong family together own businesses outside the Group.

Under the corporate governance structure, the Board of Directors is as
a whole accountable to the shareholders of the Company in respect of
the Group’s performance. The Board of Directors is responsible for the
leadership and control of the Group, which include formulation of objectives,
overall strategies and business plans; and overseeing the financial and
management performance, corporate governance, risk management and

internal control systems of the Group.
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Board of Directors (continued)
With the objective of focusing more attentively on specific areas, the
Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. Non-executive
Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors) are invited
to serve on these Board committees according to the benefits brought by
their participation in view of their individual experience and skills. To assist
the committees in discharging their roles adequately, each committee is
provided with a committee policy, setting out guidelines for its members to
follow in the process of decision-making. Duties and authorities of these
committees are also set out in their respective terms of reference. To keep
the Board fully informed of their works and findings, these committees are

required to report to the Board on a regular basis.

For the purpose of efficient operation, the Board relies on the management
for the day-to-day operation of the Group’s business. The management has
to implement the objectives, strategies and plans adopted by the Board
and report to the Board regularly. The Board monitors the work of the
management whilst the management provides an indispensable support to
the operation of the Board and the Group’s development. Given the close
collaboration between the Board and the management, the duties, power
and functions of the Board and the management are clearly laid down and

defined in writing.

Delegating its functions and authorities to the Board committees and the
management does not absolve the Board from its overall responsibility for
the governance of the Group. The Board at all times assumes the ultimate

responsibility for the Group’s management and operation.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for each financial period which give a
true and fair view of the financial position and financial performance of the
Group. In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March 2017 on a going concern basis, the
Directors have adopted suitable accounting policies and, other than the
revised accounting policies which are first effective for the year under review as
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, applied them consistently
with those applied to the financial statements of the previous financial
year. The Directors have also made judgements and estimates which are

reasonable.



DEEBRHE Corporate Governance Report

EEEw
RAREEEHREAENLE - UEERHER
MRBRAEFEMEMBERNTERIEE - XA
AR BAD B A E B IS R AE L M AR & 2
BN ETAE R E80B B LA RER -

RBE-Z—+HF=RA=T—HIMBFEA
ARBHABRAANRETEER(HTOAREHRE

IR —RERAE - REEMHETENT ¢

Board of Directors (continued)
The Directors of the Company are accountable for keeping proper records
which reflect with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group. The statement of the Auditor of the Company about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 74 to 80.

Six board meetings, of which four were regular board meetings, and one
general meeting were held during the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
Individual attendance of the Directors is set out below:

HEEBIAY FERUEERRH
Meetings attended/eligible to attend

ExggE &N -

- Directors Board Meetings General Meeting
HITEF Executive Directors

SEVRIE S () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 6/6 11
BRI E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 6/6 11
SEMESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 6/6 1/1
BRI Mr Cheong Sim Lam 6/6 1/1
$BIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 6/6 1/1
FENTTEF Non-executive Director

il Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 6/6 1/1
B HHTEE Independent Non-executive Directors

A=k E Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 6/6 1/1
hEShAE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 6/6 1/1
Bl e Mr Tse Pang Yuen 6/6 1/1

REEZERETEACHUENFMBMEEE
ARREZEBEEE - RAFE » RRBWEM
FERFHFERTE BER - UEHENEE
EWERMETREELNAE - RESERRE
R EZEZEMERBELTENRNER 2
AMENEEFTERERNEBEMEEALR
EEeRHEFTNEN REE—_T—tF=A
=T HUEMBRFE  ARAA/EELHEES
BEMETABZAMBIRE  TRISES
EENEIIRERM - AARGBEEET2
EARRMIMNEIE I EE - IS E - REBANH®
g ENAARRBBENBERT » ARREN
FrEHRRER -

To enable the Directors to maintain the necessary knowledge and skills to
perform their roles, the Company places an emphasis on Directors’ training.
During the year under review, all Directors were furnished with quarterly
memoranda/circulars so as to regularly refresh their knowledge relating to
legal and regulatory obligations. To keep the Directors abreast of the latest
developments regarding regulatory and legal requirements, the company
secretary also provided updates directly or through other professionals
to the Board as and when necessary. During the financial year ended
31 March 2017, the Company organised in-house training courses in relation
to Directors’ duties and responsibilities for the Directors and reviewed the
adequacy of training received by them. The Directors are encouraged to
attend relevant external training sessions, seminars, forums and conferences
on their own with all related expenses reimbursable by the Company, subject
to the Company’s policy.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

11



12

>

E58
REBEZZ
ESEIEIZRENT

1%

i

\
/

E—tF=A=+—BIIERFE &

#ERIE Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

2017 is set out below:

Training received by the Directors during the financial year ended 31 March

NCET
HERRE HMTBAR
g HEAL
= HEER AR
Receiving
briefings
Attending from company
courses/ secretary/
seminars/ Reading  other executives/
- Directors conferences materials professionals
HiITEE Executive Directors
ERELE(EE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) N N
BN E(FERE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) V N
B Mr Cheong Keng Hooi N Vv
iz EodEab e Mr Cheong Sim Lam N N
RIS/ A Miss Cheong Chong Ling N Vv
FHITEE Non-executive Director
SEARRE S A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles N N
B HHTTESE Independent Non-executive Directors
AEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul N N
=Bk AE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam N Vv
il pawivias Mr Tse Pang Yuen N N

af BAPFREMIEIIEENDEES

QESEMEIMETER -

F (D) BRI

Note: The above-mentioned training is relevant to (1) corporate governance, (2) rules

and regulations and (3) Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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Non-executive Director and
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Director is appointed for a term of one year whilst
Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for the period
commencing from the conclusion of one annual general meeting to the
conclusion of the following annual general meeting. According to the
Company’s Articles of Association, they are required to retire by rotation, but

remain eligible for re-election, at least once every three years.

The Company has received confirmation from each Independent
Non-executive Director about his independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and considers each of them to be independent. One of the
Independent Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as

required under the Listing Rules.

Board Committees

The Board has established three committees, namely the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit committee, each
with its written terms of reference. Each committee is required to report
back to the Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations unless there are legal or regulatory restrictions on its

ability to do so.

Remuneration Committee

The primary objective of the Group’s remuneration policy is to retain
Directors and staff of suitable calibre by remunerating them at a competitive
level. In order to achieve this, the Board has established a remuneration
committee. Under the Group’s remuneration policy, no Director or his/her
associates are allowed to be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

13



14

DEESRHE Corporate Governance Report

BEEEETHZESW
FNZEEE @)

HMEE QMM - BB IEITEEN— &Ik
WITEEER - PSR ARESELE(EERE
) EERREE - ShEBEARBETEL - B
MEBenIERERRTZESNREDE -
PMEEEELRS  BYHARANGTEERS
BEEABNTMBEREE BRI EEE
EnHmEs  BEESeEREC  EXAENR
TEENSEERBASNEMN  AESSREE
WITESNBI RN TESOEM : ZEREL
AZAMHE - B EOBEREEMAERL
I B B I RS RILERRTESEND
BEBABXMERAAELANRIERBRET
EOBEE - FOARET Rt R E BT AR K TR
BERAMESMSROBERY - THEEEW
BERSECHFAUALBENRE  TEEHR
RARNBBR S RELFHARAT X HH])
Bk o

ERIRITEEMEEEIEAB M H S 5 5o
ZEg(CEESSERADEERTRARN
BEEMET(EEBREENFHEFMESS
RRRTE) - TNEZEGBFTERAFNTES
MBI FATEZNHM  YHZEFEERNES
SEHEE c R ETNHFMASFhNTES
EEZREABHIILTENEZRREE

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Board Committees (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The remuneration committee currently comprises three Independent
Non-executive Directors and one Non-executive Director. They are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,
Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen. The main duties of the
remuneration committee are to review and make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of reference of the committee; to assist the Company
in formulating remuneration policy and structure for Directors and senior
management; to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals; to determine, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior management; to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of the Non-executive
Director and Independent Non-executive Directors; to consider salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; to review and approve
compensation payable to Executive Directors and senior management for
any loss or termination of office or appointment; and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of Directors
for misconduct. Details of the remuneration committee’s authority and
duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are
published on the websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and

Clearing Limited (“HKEX”).

Remuneration of individual Executive Directors and senior management is
determined, with delegated responsibility, by the remuneration committee on
the recommendations of the chief executive (except Mr Cheong Hooi Hong
whose remuneration package is determined by the remuneration committee
alone) on an annual basis. The remuneration committee also makes
recommendations to the Board on the review of remuneration of
Non-executive Director and Independent Non-executive Directors annually.
For all other staff, it is the Executive Directors who fix their remuneration
packages on the recommendations of their respective department heads on

an annual basis.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The amount of remuneration payable to the Directors is determined by
reference to a number of factors, including remuneration paid by comparable
companies, the Group’s results as well as the work-load, responsibility and
time commitment of the Directors. When determining the remuneration
packages of senior management and all other staff, the remuneration
committee and Executive Directors, as the case may be, take(s) into
consideration the factors including market conditions, the Group’s results,

individual performance, job nature and duties.

Other than the retirement scheme as set out in note 25 to the financial
statements on page 143, the Group does not have any long-term incentive

scheme.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the remuneration committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and the terms of reference
of the committee; considered and fixed the remuneration packages of
Executive Directors and senior management; and made recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration of both the Non-executive Director and

Independent Non-executive Directors.

The attendance record of each remuneration committee member is set out

below:
HESRAY EEEEESRRE
RE Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
RAESEE(ZESEE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 3/3
SRR Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 3/3
PEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik



16

T¥EERRE Corporate Governance Report

BEEEETHZESW
REZEE
RELZESHREEAMERTEER =R BT IE
PITERER - KERFEEBELE(ZESE
&) BB L AEELAE  hEBhEM
ST -

REZEGNIZERAERBMIEEEE  Z8®
MBESENESSEZTCBER  YREFESF
HEH BT EFERE  ABRAR(BER
BE - ABAEER) - BB A AR 2 RRIKAEM
EESRITARBES  FTRBILIFNTES
BB (R FRMEE=THAREEE
A% ﬂ%% MEAERBEERNALR
EFENE  YHEEMALA/REESANE
MEENEFSFLEE  MAEELERER
RE - EFEEFE(CEREFMITHRAE) M
ERERBTERTE S L EERRGEAFERR
RAEFSFEHER - REZEGNBESRECDH
MEPAERENBE  YEEHERARARRS
P -

\
i

F

SR
il
‘m]n B
LW

A=+—HLMBFEA
BR=ZXREZ  URARFNRESR
EHNBERE  EFSZTIEBE

RS
) B

ma}

\

B~ &
EAFERETEFTE ST EERRFIEATERR
MEFgRANESEERFRAEZSRHEZ

#REFERE  ABMMMAREFIRMHE
R 2B IFRTERNELM  RRENRZ
ERIIFATES  FRTEFTNHBEREINE
EREESFLES -

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee

The nomination committee currently comprises two Executive Directors
and three Independent Non-executive Directors. The members are
Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman), Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

The main duties of the nomination committee are to review and provide
recommendations to the Board on the nomination policy, terms of reference
of the committee and the Board diversity policy; to review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; to assess the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors; to assess the mix
in terms of gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; to identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships; and to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief executive, and on the
need of setting measurable objectives for implementing the Board diversity
policy. Details of the nomination committee’s authority and duties are set out
in the terms of reference. The said terms of reference are published on the

websites of the Company and the HKEx.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the nomination committee
held three meetings and reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
on the nomination policy, the terms of reference of the committee, the Board
diversity policy, the need of setting measurable objectives for implementing
the Board diversity policy and the necessary mix required on the Board;
made recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and composition
of the Board; assessed the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointments
of the Independent Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Director and

Directors who were subject to retirement by rotation.
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Board Committees (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)
On making recommendations to the Board for re-appointment of a
Director, the nomination committee needs to consider not only the skills
and experience of the Director concerned, but also his/her value to the
Company, so as to ensure that there is a balanced composition of the
Board. Board diversity is a key consideration in Board selection process. For
the Company, it is more than an issue of gender, it also focuses on age and
professional experience. Selection of female candidates or candidates of a
particular age group or qualifications to join the Board is, in part, dependent
on the pool of candidates possessing necessary skills, knowledge and
experience. Board appointment is mainly based on merit and contribution
likely brought by the chosen candidates. The Company believes that, with
the benefits of diversity, it can have a better understanding to the needs and

expectations of its stakeholders, in particular shoppers and tenants.

To reflect the above, the Company has adopted a Board diversity policy, in
which the nomination committee is required to assess the mix in terms of
gender, age and qualifications required on the Board; and to recommend to
the Board any matters in relation to Board diversity or implementation of the

policy.

Although the Board supports the principle of diversity, it currently does not
intend to fix a diversity quota for Board appointment or set a short term
objective on gender diversity, for such policies may compromise on the

calibre of Directors.

The process for re-election of a Director is set out in the Company’s Articles
of Association, which requires that (i) every Director should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and a retiring Director
shall be eligible for re-election; and (i) Directors who are appointed by the
Board as an addition to the Board shall retire at the next annual general
meeting whilst those appointed to fill casual vacancies shall retire at the next
general meeting (instead of the next annual general meeting) and Directors

S0 appointed are eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Nomination Committee (Continued)

FSRAZEGHELFLRIRHNT ¢ The attendance record of each nomination committee member is set out
below:
HESERAY FEBLESRREY
B Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
ENRRSE(ZEELE) Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (committee chairman) 3/3
BRI A& Mr Cheong Kheng Lim 3/3
BAZELE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 3/3
hEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 3/3
il eyt Mr Tse Pang Yuen 3/3
BREEg Audit Committee

ARBBERZBEENIRZEERAEETSHE
T ENRERERIINEREBENEL RS - HE
SNEBAZBRED A E BN - HE AR R BR IR PR B X
HEME BB R BN TE - W RESINE
[ZGIECE VALY &S SR I S EEI5 0] 4/ O
EZETERAR] - EINSZBE T maBIEE
NGB MEBRET : BIRT RMITHINEZ BN IR
HIERBRBE N RBER - BB RRGIE -
ERRER R NEREIEGIE - BEEAKRENTEE
B e ARRE TERENBRTHAIFE
ZAETRRBBINGE  LHEACDHEEES
L BEAMER A FRABIL N RAE R RETTE + £
BEEAQREMNEZBEBERIEERR K
R ZEenBERE YRESSFEHES -
ERZEENRERECFAMAELBRENR
B W BEHRANRRI RS -
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The primary responsibilities of the audit committee of the Company are
to make recommendations to the Board on appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the external auditor; to approve remuneration, terms of
engagement and handle all issues relating to resignation or dismissal in
respect of the external auditor; to review and monitor the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of its audit process; to
discuss with the external auditor the nature and scope of audit and reporting
obligations before commencement of audit; to develop and implement
policy on engagement of the external auditor to supply non-audit services;
to oversee financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems; to review financial information of the Group; to review
arrangements employees of the Company can use in confidence to raise
concerns about possible improprieties and ensure proper arrangements are
in place for fair and independent investigation and for follow-up action; to act
as the key representative body for overseeing the Company’s relations with
the external auditor; and to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the terms of reference of the committee. Details of the audit committee’s
authority and duties are set out in the terms of reference. The said terms of

reference are published on the websites of the Company and the HKEXx.
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Board Committees (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

The audit committee currently comprises three Independent Non-
executive Directors and the one Non-executive Director. The members are
Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman), Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles,

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam and Mr Tse Pang Yuen.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the audit committee met
four times and made recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment
of the external auditor; considered and approved the terms of engagement
of the external auditor for provision of interim review and audit services;
fixed the external auditor’s remuneration; reviewed the half-year and annual
financial statements of the Group, including integrity and significant financial
reporting judgements contained therein, before submission to the Board
for approval; discussed with the external auditor the nature and scope
of the audit and determined the scope and extent of the interim review
before commencement; met the external auditor without the presence of
executive board members of the Company; and considered and made
recommendations to the Board on the arrangements for employees to raise
concerns about improprieties, the audit policy, the terms of reference of the

committee and the risk management policy.

The audit committee during the year under review also reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
by monitoring the risk change during the year, assessing the adequacy of
the mitigating strategies used and the impact of the identified risks on the
Group. It also evaluated the need of setting up an internal audit function by
considering the current internal control mechanism and the pros and cons of

doing so.

BERZESHELFER IRHNT ¢ The attendance record of each audit committee member is set out below:
HESBRY BERLEESERE
54= Members Meetings attended/eligible to attend
AEREE(ZESTE) Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul (committee chairman) 4/4
SRR A Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 4/4
PEBEE Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 4/4
AT Mr Tse Pang Yuen 4/4
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Board Committees (Continued)

Corporate governance functions

Given the importance of good corporate governance to the success of
the Company, the Board is directly responsible for performing corporate
governance duties. The duties set out in the Code Provision D.3.1 of the CG

Code are included in its terms of reference.

Among the six board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 March
2017, two of the meetings covered issues relating to corporate governance.
At the meetings, the Board reviewed and modified the general code of
conduct for employees and Directors; monitored the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; considered
and revised corporate governance policies and practices including those
relating to compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and reviewed
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report.

BEELRUMAESS SR 080T Individual attendance of the Directors at the said two board meetings is set
out below:

HESRAY FEELESRREY
B2E Directors Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HITEE Executive Directors
SEVRIR () Mr Cheong Hooi Hong (Chairman) 2/2
BB (BIEE) Mr Cheong Kheng Lim (Deputy Chairman) 2/2
BIESE Mr Cheong Keng Hooi 2/2
SBEARRS A Mr Cheong Sim Lam 2/2
$BIEIS/NE Miss Cheong Chong Ling 2/2
FEHTTEF Non-executive Director
ACHERB S Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2/2
HUHBTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
[BEEEE Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 2/2
=B E Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam 2/2
BT Mr Tse Pang Yuen 2/2

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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Auditor’s Remuneration
During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Auditor of the Company,
KPMG, provided audit services of a value of approximately HK$1,191,000
to the Group. KPMG also provided non-audit services of a value of
approximately HK$424,000 to the Group, which included HK$86,000 and
HK$338,000 being charges for tax services and review of the interim results

of the Group respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control
Responsibility
The Board has an overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and

internal control systems.

To this end, the Board, assisted by the Audit Committee, oversees the
foregoing systems on an ongoing basis by evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks (including the environmental, social
and governance-related risks) it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s
strategic objectives, maintaining appropriate and effective risk management

and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.

Although the said systems are complemented by relevant procedure and
measures for the purpose of safeguarding the interests of the Group and its
shareholders as a whole, they are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or

loss.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continueq)
Key features and process

As risk management is the responsibility of everyone within the Group
and something more than a formality, it is integrated into the day-to-day
operation and carried out at all levels under the stewardship of the Board.
In order to create a control environment across the Group to support the
risk management and internal control systems, the Company is committed
to building up a corporate culture based on business ethics, control
responsibility and risk awareness. To accomplish this, the Company has
adopted a general code of conduct to govern the integrity and ethical
behaviour of employees in business practices. Procedure manuals
delineating reporting lines and areas of responsibility of each department/
operating unit are laid down and are under review regularly. In addition,
arrangements for employees to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in any matters in relation to the Group or any
non-compliance with the Company’s policies are in place. All policies, procedure
and guidelines with defined limits of delegated authority are put in writing so as

to enhance effective segregation of duties and controls.

On top of fostering a risk management culture, the Board adopts a bottom-up
approach to identify the Group’s operational risks. Instead of setting
up a separate department charged with the risk-related issues, it gets
all departments/operating units involved. Under the current systems, all
department/unit heads are required to establish risk factors specific to their
responsible areas, determine impact as well as likelihood of identified risks
in accordance with the risk appetite set by the Board and develop mitigating
strategies. They shall maintain a risk register containing the said information
and update it on a regular basis. In order to provide the Board and the Audit
Committee with an overview of the Group’s operational risks and how they
are managed, the management scrutinises, filters, amends and compiles
relevant information, together with findings of the strategic risk identification
performed by the Executive Directors on behalf of the Board, as a composite
risk report to the Board/the Audit Committee for review and endorsement.
The external auditor also has access to the risk registers and composite risk
report. During the financial year ended 31 March 2017, such risk assessment

exercise was done on a quarterly basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continueq)
Key features and process (Continued)

In the absence of an internal audit function (reasons for its absence are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Practices” on pages 5 to 8),
the Board has appointed a qualified accountant, who is also the accounting
manager of the Group, to carry out sample testing on procedure compliance
and risk-related issues in respect of all departments/operating units. Test
results and findings are reported to the Audit Committee on an annual basis.
Heads of the departments/operating units which may have a significant
financial implication on the Group’s revenue are required to make an annual
representation to the Audit Committee confirming that all potential risks in
relation to their scope of work are properly dealt with. The management will
then review the situation and provide the Board/the Audit Committee with an
annual confirmation on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal

control systems.

Being part of the internal control process, the Group has maintained a
comprehensive accounting system for ensuring complete and accurate
financial information. Annual budgets as regards rental income and operating
expenses of ISQUARE, the Group’s main source of revenue, are prepared
for effective allocation and utilisation of resources. As regards outgoings,
the Group has established procedure for approval and control of operating
expenditures whilst the capital ones are subject to management approval
prior to commitment. Other control measures include provision of monthly
management accounts to Directors and preparation of variance analyses to

help identify deficiencies and enable timely remedial actions to be taken.

Handling of inside information

Concerning inside information, the Company has implemented various
policies to govern how it shall be handled. Policy on disclosure of inside
information sets out the manner in which inside information is escalated
and disseminated whereas the risk management policy provides ways to
deal with risks which may constitute inside information. Besides, the general
code of conduct adopted by the Group prohibits inappropriate use of
confidential or inside information. All employees are required to undertake
their adherence to the said code and report any non-compliance with it to

the management.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continueq)
Handling of inside information (Continued)

For the purpose of complying with the applicable laws and regulations in
relation to inside information, the Company has adopted the Model Code as
its own code. Relevant procedure for guarding against mishandling of inside
information include pre-clearance on dealing in the Company’s securities
by designated Directors and notification of black-out period to Directors. In
order to remind Directors and employees of their obligations in securities

transaction, they are provided with memoranda on a quarterly basis.

Review of effectiveness

Although the management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal control systems,
the Board and the Audit Committee oversee the process. During the
financial year ended 31 March 2017, the Board, with the confirmation from
the management certifying that the aforesaid systems were functioning
effectively and the assistance of the Audit Committee, conducted a review
on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. Such review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. Based on the review result, the Board
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal control and
financial reporting functions were adequate and that the risk management
and internal control systems were effective and apposite to the Group
though no in-house or outsourced internal audit function has been set up as
required by the CG Code. The Board is not aware of any significant areas of

concern which should be brought to the attention of the shareholders.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As with any business, the Group faces risks and uncertainties on a daily
basis. In determining the principal risks posed to the Group, the Board takes
into account the overall severity level (based on the impact and likelihood
matrix) of the risks set out in the composite risk report and their changes
during the financial year. It also examines their nature and impact on the
Group and evaluates the effectiveness and suitability of the mitigating
strategies as applied by taking into consideration the actual operation and

performance of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
WASEEEAEWRERRTHY] - LLTER According to the prioritisation of risks from the Group’s overall perspective,

the following are identified as principal risks currently encountered by the

Group. That said, they are by no means exhaustive or comprehensive. There

may be other risks which may not be material now but could turn out to be

such in the future.

ENTERERE  AFERR
WER i34 gt TEERRERERHE
Risk change
during the year
Risk pertainingto  under review Description Key controls and mitigations
REN% i REEERBRELAZAT  AEENRENER  RENERIANEREEBEMTANEERE «
REaUBRARTRARBEFR DAEDIER  AREMRBOERESE
SABRRPER o
o ETHRERSEIRMRERENENER
ENRENFRAEENFESPNOLIRHRE &
EENTNEAZDRIBEVEAEANER RS,/ « HERFEA
B2 - ARERIMATRE) - ERYBREMEREN
Eh—ESERZ  MABTERAFEESHENE « BENS/HBPOHERURKEED
WEN  EREAR - BRRERE-SNMEESS
BEGERYLE  DLBEOHRH/BBETEHR o HLBAERIBANSEEY  ULNRED
SERERSERTE - FNBAEREE
ERROMBRENEL  REFXDEARSEEYE
REE T/ ER -
Investment ﬁ Pursuant to Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Enabling revenue growth is an effective means to counter

properties (‘IPs”)

Group’s IPs are stated at fair values in the consolidated
statement of financial position whilst changes thereof
are recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

Given the relatively heavy weighting of the IPs in the
Group’s property portfolio, any significant change in the
valuation of the IPs can seriously affect the Group’s profit/
loss for the year. As one of the key drivers of the valuation
of the IPs is rental income which can be volatile and there
has been continual downward pressure on leasing market
during the year under review, further valuation losses are
largely expected. Notwithstanding the valuation change, fair
value gains/losses will not affect the Group’s cash flow.

Due to the current financial reporting requirements,
valuation changes have influenced and will continue to
influence the Group’s profit/loss.

adverse impact caused by valuation losses. Measures
taken by the Group include the following:

¢ To preserve quality of the IPs by carrying out
maintenance and enhancement works

e Toimprove tenant mix

o To stay alert to the market/tenant needs for
maintaining competitiveness

o To launch creative and popular promotions so as to
increase exposure and add value to the IPs
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Risk Management and Internal Control ¢

ontinued)

Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)

SNTEERE  AFERR
WER k214 gt FTEELRERERYHR
Risk change
during the year
Risk pertainingto  under review Description Key controls and mitigations
HE 54 BERIARE (BREEART)#E TR ETRE - o ZEMSHRNETABEARENNEEKT
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b NRS)NER L
o ARTENEPES RERHEEIMNEERR
BREASEI BENS AR AENERPTS - AR
REBHRELEE TEPRETEMSERATRE o LREPREREVEREFEESER
P2 FEENRERKTIEEAE L -
o EREEPHERETANBAR
Leasing & As a result of a fall in number of tourists (in particular o Tokeep abreast of the market condition so as to set

mainlanders) to Hong Kong and a strong Hong Kong
dollars, the retail sales has been weak, together with a slow
economic growth, demand for business expansion has
been decreasing during the year under review. Some retail
tenants even cut down their number of shops. There is no
assurance for the Group to get new tenants within a short
period of time, or procure new leases or renew existing
tenancies at the rate previously achieved by the Group. In
view of the prevailing retail conditions, the risk of tenants’
defautt, such as failure to pay rent, increases.

Since not many tenancies are due for renewal or rent
review during the year under review and the mitigating
strategies can, to a certain extent, help combating the
impact brought by the sluggish retail market, there was no
significant change in risk exposure in the year under review.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

the rental at a reasonable but competitive rate

o To take ongoing initiatives to invite targeted tenants to
iSQUARE and appoint competent real estate agents
to market vacant spaces

e Toadopt a more cautious approach on tenant
selection

o To maintain a well-balanced tenant mix and manage

tenancy expiries and vacancies

e Toincrease tenancy deposit and closely monitor
tenants’ payment record

o To conduct direct engagement with tenants and
monitor their financial performance
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R EE R AIPELIE ) Risk Management and Internal Control (continued)
FERBRNFBERAEZ®) Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
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Risk change

during the year
Risk pertainingto  under review Description Key controls and mitigations
ANER & BT ARBRREMNEI(RAENGET)RRHBER o BHEIHHMNENNESH

AMEE - LERARRFERE -
¢ RETREAENIMEED

© BHREIRUEELS  UEEFEATIR
ol P

¢ BESHERNZENREETMER

Manpower & Insufficient supply of experienced and skilled personnel, in ¢ Toreview the competitiveness of salary and benefits
particular front-line staff, has long been an issue in service of staff
industry. Such situation continued during the year under
review. o To provide staff with relevant outside training

e Tosetup areliever pool for front-line staff so as to
provide a temporary relief of shortage of manpower

o To strengthen communication with staff through daily
briefing and social gathering

AR & MRTSEEFIRNREREN  BENAREER o+ WIEREERN UEASEROERMRE
HORAIS BOERIHR A ER A BBEHER - 2301 BEBEEREE

BREE  mRHRE - TeYERT/BOALNRE
KREER  BNPELKENMBRE - NAEE - o NUABORASREREEFABKTERTRD

it/ 2RO REBEREL BRENE - SR
Economic and & As the Group’s operation is mainly based in Hong Kong, *  To closely monitor the operating environment so as
political outlook any adverse change in political and economic climate to enable prompt adjustment to corporate strategies
in Hong Kong could disrupt its overall business. Global and business activities

uncertainties, such as terrorist attack, can also impact on

travelling and spending patterns of tourists/shoppers which o Tomaintain a solid financial position with strong cash
in turn affect the financial performance of the Group. There flow and a low gearing level

was no apparent improvement in local/global political and

economic conditions during the year under review.

G Notes:
T REBRKELEA ©:  Risk level increased
@ REBKTEAEE &:  Risk level remains broadly the same

B (SRR I R R PR S 58 LA PR AR SR 3R In addition to monitoring the impact of the principal risks that the Group is
BEHZTERMRAAEROTEIN TR E now facing by adjusting its corporate strategies and mitigating measures,
EHREAESAMAIEASBEENEATE Y the management will keep observing if there is any emerging risk which may
BT o affect the Group significantly on a regular basis.
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Shareholders’ Relations
To enhance its accountability and promote transparency, the Company is

committed to maintaining channels for communication with its shareholders.

Providing information

Corporate communications are prepared in both English and Chinese
versions and in plain language so as to make the documents understandable.
Such documents are despatched to shareholders and released to the public

domain in a timely manner.

Information released by the Company to the HKEx is posted on the

Company’s website (ttll.etnet.com.hk/eng/ca_calendar.php) thereafter.

The Articles of Association of the Company which spell out shareholders’
rights can be found on the websites of the Company and the HKEx. During
the financial year ended 31 March 2017, other than those changes adopted
by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 September 2016,

there were no changes made to the Articles of Association of the Company.

Encouraging participation/interaction

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a forum for face-to-
face communication between shareholders and the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies
to attend, speak and vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are
unable to attend. Board members, in particular, the Chairman of the Board
and chairmen of the Board committees, or their delegates, appropriate
management staff and the Company’s external auditor normally attend

annual general meetings to answer shareholders’ questions.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)

Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Shareholders are also provided with means by which their enquiries can
be put forward to the Board. Such channels, including designated email

address (ttlicosec@tianteckgroup.com), correspondence address, fax

number and telephone number, are made available on the Company’s
website. Queries relating to shareholders’ own shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Subject to applicable legislation and regulations, in particular the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association of
the Company as amended from time to time, shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”, and each a “Shareholder”) may convene general meetings
and put forward proposals at general meetings. The relevant procedure is

set out below:

To convene an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
° The Company holds a general meeting as its AGM every year. An

AGM is usually held in September.

o If the Company fails to hold an AGM (which is unlikely to occur) after
6 months have elapsed since the end of the Company’s financial year,
any Shareholder may apply to the court in Hong Kong which, on such

application, may call or direct the calling of an AGM of the Company.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To move a resolution at an AGM

Shareholder(s) can make a request to circulate a resolution for an

AGM if they represent at least:

(@)

2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who
have a right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the

request relates; or

50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at

the AGM to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@

be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,

Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

identify the proposed resolution;

be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks before the

AGM to which the request relates or if later, the time at which

notice of the AGM is despatched.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and

upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

company secretary will request the Board to include the resolution

in the agenda for the AGM. On the contrary, if the request is verified

as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this

outcome and accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be included
in the agenda for the AGM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To convene a General Meeting (“GM”)

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of
all the Shareholders having a right to vote at GMs can request the
Directors to call a GM.

The request:

(@) must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting;

(b)  may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the meeting;

(c) may consist of several documents in like form;

(d)  must be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;
and

(e) must be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
company secretary will request the Board to convene a GM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory requirements to all
the registered Shareholders. On the contrary, if the request is verified
as not in order, the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this
outcome and accordingly, a GM will not be convened as requested.

Directors must call a GM within 21 days after the date on which they
become subject to the requirement and the meeting so called must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice
convening the meeting.

If the Directors do not convene a GM as required, the Shareholder(s)
concerned or any of them representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them may themselves call a GM, and the meeting
so convened must be called for a date not more than 3 months after
the date on which the Directors become subject to the requirement
to call a GM. The Company must reimburse any reasonable expenses
incurred by the Shareholder(s) requesting the GM by reason of the
failure of the Directors duly to call a GM.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
To propose a person other than a Director of the Company for

election as a Director at a GM, including an AGM

In accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company at the
meeting at which a Director retires may fill the vacated office by
electing a person thereto. If a Shareholder (other than the person
to be nominated as mentioned hereinafter), who is duly qualified
to attend and vote at the GM for which the notice of intention as
hereinafter described is to be given, wishes to propose a person other
than a retiring Director of the Company for election as a Director of
the Company at any GM, he/she should sign and deposit a notice of
intention to that effect at 9th Floor, ISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim
Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company,
for the attention of the Board together with a notice signed by the
nominated person of his/her willingness to be elected. The minimum
length of period during which such notices are given shall be at least
7 days and the period for lodgement shall commence no earlier than
the day after despatch of the notice of the meeting appointed for such
election (inclusive of such day) and end no later than 7 days prior to

the date of such GM (“Lodgement Period”).

To enable the Company to inform Shareholders of the foregoing
proposal, the written notices as mentioned above shall be
accompanied by (i) the information of the nominated person as
required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and
(i) the written consent of the nominated person to the publication of

his/her personal data.

Relevant procedure and the Lodgement Period for each GM will
be set out in the corresponding circular to be despatched to the

Shareholders.

If the notice is received less than 15 clear days prior to the GM,
the Company will consider adjourning the GM in order to allow
Shareholders at least 14 clear days or 10 clear business days’ notice

of the proposal, whichever is the longer.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM

Eligible Shareholders can express their views on a matter mentioned
in a proposed resolution or other business to be dealt with at a GM
in a written statement of not more than 1,000 words and request the
Company to circulate it to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of a

GM. Eligible Shareholders must represent at least:

(a) 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having the

relevant right to vote; or

(o) 50 Shareholders having the relevant right to vote.

For a statement concerning a matter mentioned in a proposed

resolution, “the relevant right to vote” means a right to vote on that

resolution at the meeting to which the request relates. For a statement
concerning other business, “the relevant right to vote” means a right
to vote at the meeting to which the request relates.

The request must:

(@  be sent in hard copy form to the Deputy Chairman of the
Board at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong, the registered office of the Company;

(o)  identify the statement to be circulated;

(c)  be signed by all the Shareholder(s) concerned; and

(d) be received by the Company at least 7 days before the meeting

to which it relates.
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Shareholders’ Relations (continued)
Encouraging participation/interaction (Continued)
Circulation of Statement at a GM, including an AGM (Continued)

o The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the

Company will circulate the statement to Shareholders entitled to

receive notice of the meeting provided that:

(@) if the request relates to an AGM,

(i) the statement is received in time to enable the Company

to send a copy of the statement at the same time as the

notice of AGM is despatched; or

(ii) otherwise, the Shareholder(s) concerned have, not
later than 7 days before the AGM, deposited a sum
reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in

circulating the statement submitted by the Shareholder(s)

concerned.

(b) if the request relates to a GM other than an AGM, the
Shareholder(s) concerned have, not later than 7 days before
the GM, deposited a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the

Company’s expenses in circulating the statement submitted by

the Shareholder(s) concerned.

On the contrary, if the request is verified as not in order or as not
received in time for the Company to include a copy of the statement
in the notice of AGM or the Shareholder(s) concerned has/have failed
to deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the circulation purpose within the time frame (as the case may be),
the Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of this outcome and

accordingly, the statement will not be circulated to Shareholders

entitled to receive notice of the meeting.
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Approach and Strategy
Being a responsible enterprise, the Company is not only concerned with
its financial growth but also its non-financial performance. The Company
recognises that the manner in which it delivers business will impact on
the environment and society. As such, the management strives to make a
positive contribution to the sustainability development of the environment
and society by integrating the socially responsible practices in its daily
operation. The Executive Directors are responsible for driving environmental
and social responsibilities initiatives and reviewing their practices for

performance improvement.

Reporting Scope

This Corporate Social Responsibility Report provides a review on the Group’s
performance of its environmental and social responsibilities for the financial
year ended 31 March 2017. As iISQUARE is the Group’s main operation

vehicle, its performance is included herein unless otherwise specified.

This report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules. Its content is determined through a process which involves
identification of stakeholders and relevant issues on environmental and social
responsibilities and prioritisation of the issues to be reported after taking into
account the stakeholders’ expectations and the Group’s unique business
nature. In this report, only the environmental and social responsibilities
initiatives and performance that are material and/or relevant to the Group
and its stakeholders are outlined. During the financial year ended 31 March
2017, the Company complied with all the “comply or explain” provisions,

where applicable, set out in the Guide.
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Stakeholders’ Engagement and Materiality
Assessment

To truly understand the views and expectations of the stakeholders on
sustainability development, the Company keeps ongoing communication
with its key stakeholders. During the year under review, the Company
engaged its shareholders, employees, business partners and tenants
through face-to-face discussions and questionnaires. Reporting issues are
identified according to the impact of the issues on the Group’s business
and stakeholders as evaluated by the management and the stakeholders

respectively.

Environmental Issues

Policy

Since the management acknowledges that the Group shall take into account
the impact of its business operation on the environment while achieving
financial growth, the Group has adopted an environmental policy with a

focus on the following:
1. ensuring full compliance with applicable legislation and requirements

2. incorporating environmental considerations into contracting decisions

and tenant selection where practicable

3. promoting environmental awareness among staff

4, adopting eco-friendly practices in daily operation

5. disposing of waste in an environmentally responsible way

6. reducing waste and where practicable, reusing and recycling materials

7. communicating the Group’s policy to its key stakeholder and
encouraging it to integrate the environmental concerns into its

operation process
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Initiatives

In order to help reduce carbon emissions from the office, the Group during
the year under review started appending an automatic footnote to all
outgoing emails requesting recipients to consider the environment before
printing, issued reminder to employees on observance of the Group’s green
office measures and organised a recycling programme for used/useless lai
see packets. The Group also participated in the “Earth Hour 2017” organised
by World Wide Fund for Nature (“WWF”) so as to raise the staff awareness

on environmental conservation.

Simultaneously, the Group continues to operate office facilities in an

environmentally responsible manner, for instance

° using water-saving sanitary fittings, such as dual flushing cisterns and

photo-sensor water taps

using FSC-certified A4 paper

° recycling used white paper through a paper recycling company
. employing multi-zone lighting controls
o using environmentally friendly paper for printing corporate

communication to shareholders

° switching off air-conditioning, lights and computers when they are not

in use

For the purpose of matching up the Group’s concern over environmental
protection, iISQUARE, being the Group’s main operation vehicle, also takes

proactive steps towards this end. During the year under review, it

o replaced some less energy efficient light bulbs with LED lights

o participated in “Earth Hour 2017” as organised by WWF

o provided venues at a substantially discounted rate for events

promoting the nature and environmental awareness, such as the

exhibition organised by The Nature Conservancy for saving Yunnan

golden monkeys and the “Butterfly Wonderland Upcycling Art
Exhibition” as hosted by Green Power
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Initiatives (Continued)
In addition to the aforesaid, iISQUARE keeps employing those green

measures it has been using, such as

o use of ultra low sulphur diesel for generator
o diversion of used water from cooling towers for flushing
o shortening daily operating hours of lights with devices, such as

multi-zone lighting controls, and air-conditioning at common areas

accessible by shoppers where possible

o encouraging tenants to follow guidelines in relation to environmentally

friendly practices

o recycling waste paper, plastics and metals via the participation of
the “Programme on Source Separation of Commercial and Industrial

Waste” as organised by the Environmental Protection Department

o equipping the building with energy saving features and materials,
such as the use of glass curtain walls to minimise lighting sources and
window films with anti-UV coating to reduce solar radiation and heat,

where appropriate

After retrofitting certain chillers with variable frequency drives in February
2015 (together with some other energy saving measures taken during the
year under review), the electricity consumption of iISQUARE has dropped.
Taking figure for the financial year ended 31 March 2015 as the baseline, the
amount of electricity purchased from electricity provider during the financial
year ended 31 March 2017 reduced over 1,161,000 kWh, representing a
drop of about 8.57%. To further reduce electricity consumption, iISQUARE
will continue its energy saving programme on lighting system through
the identification of locations where more energy efficient lights could be
installed. In addition, it will recycle all the used toner/cartridges in the financial
year ending 31 March 2018.
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IRIEETE ) Environmental Issues (continued)
=B Performance

ARAEB T ENEMHEIRE MIEEER - MEH Since the Group is principally engaged in property investment and
RESBTFEURGARN  EFfEAMEELE investment holding, and iISQUARE is predominantly service-oriented, the
REBALEMERLD - RAFE - BRASmMES total amount of direct Greenhouse Gas emissions (“GHG emissions”)
H R E RS HE R AN 5 B N BB & 35 6% 2 F generated by them is relatively small. The largest contributor to the carbon
HEERR - footprint of both the Group and ISQUARE in the year under review was the

indirect GHG emissions from electricity consumption.

1. BREIBHER(ZatRES) 1. GHG emissions' (CO, equivalent)

EHEAR (&A1)
Direct sources (Scope 1)1
o SH2 NI 0.77 0.73
Diesel? Tonnes
AT (#B/E2)"
Indirect sources (Scope 2)'
o TIPS NI 6,725.55 6,773.21
Electricity? Tonnes
B 1 IR (#E/E3)"
Other indiirect sources (Scope 3)!
o RIEBRIKMEMHIEN N 19.54 24.39
Electricity used for processing fresh water* Tonnes
o BRIF)S/KIMEERIE S° N 9.24 10.88
Electricity used for processing sewage® Tonnes
o BEFMEEARAREARO YN 1.21 TEA
Paper waste disposed at landfills® Tonnes NA
RERBLAEBNE(FET - 2K%3) N 6,756.31 6,809.21
Total GHG emissions’ (Scopes 1, 2 and 3) Tonnes
BREAEREBHN
GHG emissions avoided
o AfSR[EIlge NI (207.36) (224.98)
Recycling of papers Tonnes
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)
2. Energy consumption

BEBREFE
Direct energy consumption
o L PN 3.24 A
Diesel® MWh NA
IR EFE
Indirect energy consumption
o B|AHW JEFL /N 12,454.73 i
Electricity'© MWh NA
BEREREEE IR FL/ )N 12,457.97 TEA
Total energy consumption MWh NA
BEFKEEEEERERESE JEENEE, TR 0.23 TNEH
Total energy consumption per m2 of floor area MWh/m2 NA

3. HEEHFE

o WMAEMMK

3. Paper consumption'

NI 600.93 NiE A

Office paper kg NA

o EEARIBAMK NI 1,290.50 i
Paper for printing corporate communication kg NA
HRENE Ny 1,891.43 TEA
Total paper consumption kg NA

Tian Teck Land Limited K& & R 2 &
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)
4. Water consumption?2

ERKE

Total water consumption
Y AAEEERE AXKESE

Total water consumption per m? of floor area

K 48,620.00 TEA

m3 NA
SFKFFK 0.92 NEH
m3/m?2 NA

RRASERERUNERES - MERE
BZHOKTIRBKEE - BAKERERE
B R EEF LY EEI KR BN EME

8o

5. EYER

JER B
Waste collected for recycling
o oRs
Papers
o wpe
Plastics™
o LEI5
Metals'®

As the Group is situated at iISQUARE where water is provided by
Water Supplies Department, both the Group and iISQUARE do not

encounter any problem in sourcing water for daily operation.

5. Waste management

NI 43,200.00 46,870.00
kg

NI 224.00 208.00
kg

NI 156.00 169.00
kg
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:

Note 6:

GHG emissions, including classification and calculation basis, are based on
the Guidelines to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and
Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purposes)
in Hong Kong as prepared by the Electrical and Mechanical Services
Department and the Environmental Protection Department (“‘Hong Kong GHG
Guidelines”). All numbers in this table are rounded to two decimal places.

Boundary for the scopes

Scope 1 is the direct GHG emissions from the emergency generator owned
and controlled by iISQUARE. It excludes any offsets, if available.

Scope 2 is the indirect GHG emissions that are resulted from the generation
of electricity which the Group and iISQUARE, excluding tenants through their
own metered supply, purchased from power company for own consumption.

Scope 3 is other indirect GHG emissions that (i) come from paper waste
disposed at landfills and (i) are relevant to the activities of the Group and
iISQUARE and are generated due to electricity used for processing fresh
water and sewage, excluding those operated from tenants’ own metered
supply, by government departments.

Emissions are calculated as per the amount of diesel consumed by the
emergency generator of ISQUARE and the emission factors and the Global
Warming Potential set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.

Emissions are calculated according to the amount of electricity purchased
by the Group and iISQUARE for own consumption as shown in electricity bills
and the latest emission factor as published by the relevant electricity provider.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of fresh water as published by the Water Supplies
Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of water consumed by the
Group and iISQUARE as shown in water bills and the latest available unit
electricity consumption of processing sewage as published by the Drainage
Services Department multiplied by the territory-wide default value.

Emissions are calculated based on the amount of office paper consumed
by the Group (excluding paper generated by the management company
engaged to run iISQUARE (“MgtCo”) for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE)
and the relevant emission factor set out in the Hong Kong GHG Guidelines.
Amount of paper consumed by the Group first recorded is for the year ended
31 March 2017.
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Environmental Issues (continued)
Performance (Continued)

Note 7:  As no data in relation to paper waste disposed at landfills was recorded
before the year ended 31 March 2017, the total GHG emissions for the year
ended 31 March 2016 do not include emissions from paper waste disposed
at landfills.

Note 8:  Emissions avoided are calculated according to the amount of paper collected
for recycling (including paper generated within the Group, paper documents
tendered by external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through
iISQUARE) and the relevant emission factor provided in the Hong Kong GHG

Guidelines.

Note 9:  Energy consumption is calculated based on the amount of diesel consumed
by the emergency generator of ISQUARE and the relevant conversion factor
set out in the “List of common conversion factors (Engineering conversion
factors)” as published by IOR Energy Pty Ltd. No such data was recorded
before the year ended 31 March 2017.

Note 10: Energy consumption is the amount of electricity purchased by the Group and
ISQUARE for own consumption as shown in electricity bills. No such data is
available for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 11: Referring to paper generated by the Group only (excluding paper generated

by the MgtCo for any purpose in relation to iISQUARE). No such data is
available for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 12: Being the amount of water used by the Group and iISQUARE as shown in
water bills. No such data is available for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Note 13: Including paper generated within the Group, paper documents tendered by
external parties to the Group, and paper disposed through iISQUARE.
Note 14: Being plastics disposed through iSQUARE.

Note 15: Being metals disposed through iSQUARE.
Due to their business nature, the Group and iISQUARE do not generate
a material amount of hazardous waste and disclosure of total packaging

material used for finished products is not applicable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group and iISQUARE’s operating activities

have no significant impact on the environment and natural resources.
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Environmental Issues (continued)

Compliance with environmental-related laws and
regulations

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations relating to the

environment that had a significant impact on it.

Social Issues

Since the management of iISQUARE has been outsourced to the MgtCo
and there is no need for the Group to directly deal with employment-related
matters in respect of iISQUARE, discussion on areas relating to social issues

only covers the Group.

Employment

As the Group’s success depends largely on the support of its employees®,
the management places great emphasis on maintaining a quality workplace.
Building up a culture which advocates ethical and responsible business
practices has become essential. To this end, the Group has adopted a
general code of conduct (“Code”) which applies to both Directors and
employees and deals with areas of data privacy, copyright protection,
prevention of bribery, equal opportunities and “whistle-blowing”. In addition,
the Group has laid down an employment policy, setting out its principles
on recruitment and promotion, such as equal opportunities and “selection
on capability” basis. Procedures and factors to be considered on review
of the remuneration packages of the senior management are delineated in
the remuneration policy. Information in respect of the Group’s remuneration
review mechanism is mentioned in the Corporate Governance Report
headed “Remuneration Committee” as set out on pages 13 to 15. To
be consistent with the principles of the employment policy on motivating
employees and providing equal opportunities, performance appraisal is
conducted annually. It is the basis for salary adjustment, discretionary bonus

and promotion.

Although policies on compensation and dismissal, working hours and rest
periods, and some other benefits and welfare are not put in writing, relevant
steps to govern their application and due observance have been developed
and implemented under the management of the Executive Directors of the

Company.

* Staff/employees exclude Directors of the Company and staff employed by the
MgtCo for general building and property management of iISQUARE throughout
this Corporate Social Responsibility Report.
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Social Issues (continued)

Development and training
In order to create a supportive workplace which enables the employees to
develop their professional potential and discharge their duties adequately,
the Group provides subsidy for job-related training to all employees,
irrespective of their rankings. Given the complexity of job duties, senior
management is provided with additional funding for outside training. Other
than financial support, the Group also organises group-wide training for its

staff from time to time.

Key topics covered by the training undertaken by the employees during the

year under review included:

° compliance and regulatory updates
° tackling cybersecurity issues

° prevention and detection of fraud

° prevention of bribery

Employee engagement
Since a good work-life balance is considered significant to the employees,
the Group encourages its staff to complete their tasks within office hours

and organises gatherings for them so as to promote the spirit of the Group.

Although the Group does not have a collective bargaining policy or similar
practice in place, it respects its employees and takes steps to ensure their
voices are heard. Other than departmental meetings and communication
through emails, the Group encourages direct dialogue between the
management and staff by adopting a non-bureaucratic culture. Employees
can freely bring up issues to the management when they consider

necessary.

Employee satisfaction survey is another important means for the Group to
solicit staff opinions about their working environment and expectation. Result
will be shared among the management and relevant department heads so as

to identify ways to make further improvement.
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Social Issues (continued)

Employee engagement (Continued)

During the year under review, a satisfaction survey on employees was
conducted. About 70% of the respondents found either satisfied or very
satisfied with the Group as a whole whilst over 60% was happy with the
workforce-management relationship. As at 31 March 2017, more than half
of the employees have been working with the Group over a decade. The
employee turnover rate for the year ended 31 March 2017 was about 5.97%

while the employee absence rate was around 2.11%.

Health and safety

Since the Group’s main business is property investment and investment
holding, health and safety risk posed to its employees as a result of
occupational activities is relatively low. Nevertheless, the Group is dedicated
to provide a healthy and safe working environment to its staff and therefore

has established a policy in this regard with an emphasis on:
o compliance with all applicable statutory requirements

o ensuring a continuous improvement of the health and safety level
at workplace by reviewing the operating practices and seeking

comments from employees from time to time

o adopting measures which can reduce, control and if possible,

eliminate hazards at workplace

o conveying the Group’s concerns over health and safety to the MgtCo
and requesting it to get its front-line staff and contractors familiarised

with the proper procedures required in that regard

During the year under review, the Group carried out an audit on lighting level
by referencing to the “Guide to Health Risk Assessment — Office Environment
Series” published by the Labour Department with the aim to improve the

working environment.
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Social Issues (continued)
Labour standards

While the Group does not have its own specific policy regarding child labour
or forced labour, it is a statutory requirement in Hong Kong, a place where

the Group operates, not to engage child and forced labour.

During the year under review, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on it relating to employment, health and safety, and labour standards as

mentioned in aspects B1, B2 and B4 of the Guide.

Supply chain management

Given the Group’s business nature and operation mode, its suppliers can
broadly be categorised into direct suppliers and indirect suppliers. For the
former one, it refers to those the Group directly liaises with, such as the
MgtCo, professional service providers and some other companies that
deliver services for support of the Group’s infrastructure and office operation
on areas such as insurance, banking and information technology. Services
of the indirect suppliers, such as electrical and mechanical engineering,
cleaning and security, are provided under the umbrella of the MgtCo. Based
on the expenditure level and the significance to the Group, the Group’s key
suppliers are bankers and the MgtCo, of which, the role of the latter one is
particularly important given its “contracting” relationships with the indirect

suppliers.

Since suppliers are the “extension” of the Group, their behaviour shall reflect
the Group’s values. Although the Group does not maintain a separate
policy on managing environmental and social risks of its suppliers, it has
embedded the relevant concerns in its environmental policy and health and
safety policy. As the MgtCo is the key supplier which poses a significant
impact on the Group, it is provided with relevant policies of the Group in the
hope that it can convey the Group’s concerns to the indirect suppliers. The
MgtCo is also requested to integrate the Group’s values into its operation
process where practicable and economically viable. Apart from written
communication, the Group has frequent direct dialogue and regular meetings
with the MgtCo. According to the said policies, the Group also reviews
its practices from time to time so as to reduce health and safety risks at
workplace and incorporates environmental considerations into contracting

decisions.
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Social Issues (continued)

Supply chain management (Continued)

Although more than half of the suppliers have been a working partner of
the Group over a decade, the Group values the relationships with them
and is eager to know if there is any room for improvement. To achieve it, a
satisfaction survey was sent to some suppliers on a random basis during the
year under review. The feedback of the survey was encouraging. It showed
that all the respondents found partnering with the Group was not merely

mutually beneficial, but also as a whole satisfactory.

Product/service responsibility

Shop tenants of ISQUARE are the Group’s key customers. Establishing a
sound and lasting relationship with them is pivotal to the success of the
Group. To facilitate a two-way communication, the management team
pays visits to the shops from time to time so as to exchange views with the
tenants directly and respond to their concerns efficiently. The tenants can
also contact the management, leasing and promotion teams via telephone
and email as and when needed. In spite of the limited written complaints
received during the year ended 31 March 2017, a formal complaint-handling
mechanism is in place so as to ensure tenants’ dissatisfaction can be

properly addressed to in a timely manner.

In order to evaluate the services delivered to the tenants and identify service
gaps, the Group during the year under review conducted a satisfaction
survey on about half of its tenants. Although the survey result showed that
there were some areas such as marketing the Group had to further work on,
over 70% of the respondents considered the overall performance in each
of the areas of leasing, management/security and technical/maintenance
as satisfactory. About three quarters of the respondents expressed interest
in renewing tenancy with the Group and more than 70% said they would

recommend iISQUARE to their business partners.

Other than customer satisfaction, the Group also recognises the importance
of personal data protection. Relevant concerns have been incorporated into
the Code and are communicated to the employees. According to the Code,
employees are required to safeguard the privacy and security of personal
information of the Group’s stakeholders by observing the data protection
principles of the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance. Collected information is
accessible on a “need-to-know” basis. In view of the close relationship with
the MgtCo, the Group has also made known to it of the Group’s concerns in

this regard.
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Social Issues (continued)
Product/service responsibility (Continued)

Providing a safe environment to the tenants is also a great concemn to the
Group. Although property management of iISQUARE is the job of the MgtCo,
the Group still closely monitors it by receiving updates from the MgtCo via
regular project meetings and daily report. On top of it, the project team also
patrols ISQUARE on a daily basis so as to ensure it is managed in an orderly
fashion. As for ad hoc issues, the MgtCo is required to report to the Group

promptly.

Anti-corruption

As the Group has zero-tolerance on any forms of bribery, corruption and
fraud, it has established a policy detailing situations in which acceptance of
advantages is allowed. Key principles concerning prevention of bribery and
channel for reporting suspected cases are set out in the Code. Employees
are required to undertake their adherence thereto. Besides, internal control
activities are in place to detect malpractices. Upon receipt of any reported
issues, the management will conduct investigation and handle them in the

manner set out in the Code.

To help staff stay alert to the pitfall of corruption, the Group during the year
arranged a talk hosted by the Independent Commission Against Corruption

for all its staff.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact
on it relating to product responsibility and anti-corruption as mentioned in
aspects B6 and B7 of the Guide.
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Social Issues (continued)

Community

In recognition of its role in advancement of the community, the Group has
established a community policy. General principles on donation, focus areas,
and the form in which the support is delivered are clearly set out therein.
During the year under review, the Group made donations to Hong Chi

Association and The Community Chest.

The Group believes that going beyond corporate philanthropy by providing
venues to organisations for hosting charitable events is the best way to help
the needy as it can inspire others to follow and draw the public attention to
the needs of the underprivileged. During the year ended 31 March 2017,

the Group offered venues at a substantially discounted rate to the following

charities:

. Oxfam

. Médecins Sans Frontieres
o The Nature Conservancy

° Save the Children

° Green Power

o Po Leung Kuk

. UNICEF

° St. James’ Settlement
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The Board of Directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) submits herewith the
annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Group for

the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal Place of Business

Tian Teck Land Limited (the “Company”) is a company incorporated and
domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at 9th Floor, iISQUARE, 63 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Company are property investment and
investment holding. The principal activities and other particulars of the

subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the
operations of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as
the “Group”) during the financial year is set out in note 4 to the financial

statements.

Financial Statements
The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017
and the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the financial

statements on pages 81 to 146.
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Dividends and Annual General Meeting

An interim dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2016: HK$0.23 per share) was
paid on 11 January 2017. The Board now recommends the payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.23 per share (2016: HK$0.23 per share) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Subject to the members’ approval on the proposed final dividend at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed for the purpose of determining entitlement to the
said final dividend from Monday, 18 September 2017 to Wednesday,
20 September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 15 September 2017.
The proposed final dividend will be paid on Monday, 9 October 2017 to
members whose names appear on the register of members on Wednesday,
20 September 2017 following approval at the annual general meeting to be

held on Tuesday, 12 September 2017.

For the purpose of determining the identity of members who are entitled to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 5 September 2017
to Tuesday, 12 September 2017, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. All transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 4 September 2017.
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Business Review and Commentary

Business model and strategies

The Group’s business is property investment in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China. The Group generates and preserves its value through

being an investor in those property markets.

To accomplish this, the Group strives to nurture growth from its existing
properties through prudent management. Whilst the Group generally
maintains a prudent and conservative approach towards property
investment, it also seeks to exploit opportunities for future development. With
the aim of securing stable and recurring returns, the Group has adopted
very stringent investment criteria and targets only high quality projects and

investments.

The Group recognises the importance of sound financial strength to support
sustainable growth and future development and hence, its fundamental
strategy is to maintain a solid financial position with strong cash flow and a

low gearing ratio.

Financial results

The Group achieved a profit from operations before valuation changes
in investment properties of HK$552.2 million for the financial year ended
31 March 2017, representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.1%
compared with the previous financial year. The decrease was mainly due to
decrease of rental income from ISQUARE compared to the previous financial

year.

Net valuation losses on investment properties for the financial year ended
31 March 2017 amounted to HK$628.3 million, compared with the net
valuation gains of HK$410.5 million for the previous financial year. The
valuation changes will only affect the accounting profit or loss but not the

cash flow of the Group.
The Group recorded a loss attributable to equity shareholders of

HK$90.6 million, compared with a profit attributable to equity shareholders

of HK$439.0 million for the previous financial year.
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Financial results (Continued)

iISQUARE is a commercial complex housing retail, entertainment, food
and beverage establishments. Rental income from iISQUARE amounted
to approximately HK$658.0 million for the financial year ended 31 March
2017, representing a slight decrease of approximately 0.9% compared
with the previous financial year. The occupancy rate at 31 March 2017 was
approximately 96.8% compared with approximately 96.3% at 31 March
2016.

The Group’s investment properties comprising four floors of Goodluck
Industrial Centre in Lai Chi Kok and one floor of a commercial building in

Guangzhou in the PRC, continued to generate rental income during the year.

Capital structure and liquidity
The total equity for the Group at 31 March 2017 was HK$14,529.2 million,
compared with HK$15,133.7 million at 31 March 2016.

On 7 October 2013, Associated International Hotels Limited (“AIHL”), a
50.01% owned subsidiary, entered into a facility agreement with a bank
comprising of a 3-year term loan facility of up to HK$200 million and a 3-year
revolving loan facility of up to HK$100 million both at floating interest rate. On
30 August 2016, AIHL entered into a supplemental agreement with the bank
for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019. AIHL has an
option to further extend the facilities for two additional years to 8 October
2021, subject to, among other things, the agreement of the lending bank.
At 31 March 2017, the banking facilities were utilised to the extent of
HK$200 million (2016: HK$200 million) and the Group’s gearing ratio
(calculated as total bank loans divided by total equity) was 1.4% (2016: 1.3%).
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Business Review and Commentary (Continued)
Staff

At 31 March 2017, the total number of employees of the Group, excluding
the staff employed by DTZ Cushman & Wakefield Property Management
Limited for general building and property management of iISQUARE, was 38
(2016: 39) and the related costs incurred during the year were approximately

HK$26.1 million (2016: HK$25.9 million).

In addition to salaries, medical and retirement benefits, the Group pays
discretionary bonuses to its staff. Sponsorships for necessary outside

training courses are also provided by the Group to its staff.

Key performance indicators
(@)  Cost of services to revenue ratio
. Definition and calculation: Cost of services to revenue ratio
measures the operation efficiency by comparing cost of
services as a percentage of revenue. It shows the level of direct

expenditure required to generate every dollar of revenue.

° Purpose: The Group emphasises cost control. The ratio
provides direction on controlling and better using expenses.
iISQUARE is the principal investment of the Group and it
contributed 97.7% of the Group’s revenue for the financial year
ended 31 March 2017 (2016: 97.6%). The extent to which this
goal has been achieved is assessed by comparing the ratio
for iISQUARE from one year to the next, as it is an indicator

showing the operation efficiency of iISQUARE.

° Quantified KPI data: The cost of services to revenue ratio for
ISQUARE at 31 March 2017 was 12.5% (2016: 12.2%).
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Business Review and Commentary (continued)
Key performance indicators (Continued)
(b)  Occupancy rate
o Definition and calculation: Occupancy rate is a measure that
reflects the leasing performance. It is defined as lettable area
that have been rented out as a percentage of the total lettable

area.

o Purpose: The Group aims to enhance leasing performance.
The extent to which this goal has been achieved is assessed by
comparing occupancy rate for each investment property from
one year to the next, as it is an indicator showing the leasing

performance of various properties in the Group.

o Quantified KPI data:

Occupancy rate
M20175 20165
3H31H 3H31H
At 31 March At 31 March
BREME Investment properties 2017 2016
B E 5 iISQUARE 96.8% 96.3%
TREBNEMEEYE  Other commercial properties in Hong Kong 100% 100%
(BN FSES ) ES Commercial properties in the PRC 87.9% 100%
MAREBNITEYE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 100% 81.1%-100%

RBEBR - RBRRBEEMNEST ; 2R
SRR E N ERREE
BEB(RREPDMERS 2 BRMIEHBBEAE
ERSEHRRAR - M TERRAE SRR
Bl - AREEF AR & 2 EEBENH - 5]
BN A REEEE0EM DRI R ETRE
M MZSHRBAEEEREN D -

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Environmental policy, performance and related
compliance; key relationships with stakeholders
Discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance,
compliance with environmental-related laws and regulations as well as
key relationships with its stakeholders as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be found in the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report on pages 35 to 50 of the annual report, and such

discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.
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Business Review and Commentary (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties

Discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance can be
found in the Corporate Governance Report headed “Risk Management and
Internal Control — Principal risks and uncertainties” as set out on pages 24
to 27 of the annual report, and such discussion forms part of this Directors’

Report.

Particulars of important events
The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that

have occurred since the end of the financial year.

Outlook

Weak retail segment continues to put downward pressure on the Hong Kong
leasing market. With the anticipated increase in new supply of retail premises
in the Tsim Sha Tsui area, increased downward pressure on the leasing
market is expected in the coming year. Management will closely monitor
the market changes and will take appropriate steps to reduce the possible
impact on the rental income of the Group. It is anticipated that rental income
from iISQUARE and the results from operations of the Group for the coming

financial year will be adversely affected.
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BEg Directors

RAEFHRFEERBEARER  XQARMES The Directors of the Company during the financial year and up to the date of
SHREWT ¢ this report were:

HITES Executive Directors

SEIEIE Cheong Hooi Hong

§EIEHR Cheong Kheng Lim

s Cheong Keng Hooi

g Cheong Sim Lam

$EIEIS Cheong Chong Ling

FHITES Non-executive Director

izicli Sin Cho Chiu, Charles

BEHITES Independent Non-executive Directors

HEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul

%hES Yau Allen Lee-nam

Hs T Tse Pang Yuen

REANGMWAZEZLRF ISR EBIK - In accordance with articles 95 and 96 of the Company’s Articles
BRI S  MERBEERKTBREBREE of Association, Mr Cheong Sim Lam, Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles and
BRMNBRRBEFTAL LRESE - HEBEET - Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam shall retire from the Board by rotation at the

forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for

re-election.

RAFBRFERBEARELY - XQRFT During the financial year and up to the date of this report, directors

BB ARINESR AEBIELL - BIEMARIELE of all the Company’s subsidiaries (except Associated International Hotels

SRR & M B2 o A (BB BB TR B R Limited (“AIHL”) whose directors also included Miss Cheong Chong Ling,

REI([ENEE ) E R BEERRK/NME - £ER Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam

S AT A - PRI RERIEN) - and Mr Lee Chung) were Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, Mr Cheong Kheng Lim,
Mr Cheong Keng Hooi and Mr Cheong Sim Lam.
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Directors’ Service Contracts
The executive directors (except Miss Cheong Chong Ling) were appointed to
their respective executive offices in the Company’s subsidiary, AIHL, for an
initial period of two years effective on 1 January 1986 and their appointments
continue after the said period unless and until either party gives to the other
three months’ notice in writing and their respective directorship shall also
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the
Articles of Association of AIHL.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable by
the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of

compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and considers all the independent

non-executive directors to be independent.
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EERBSTHRAERE f%  Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
7 HERODNEESNWREZRE  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
KA and Debentures

BARAIRRCE S R EGEFIN(FBHIEN ) E As at 31 March 2017, the directors and chief executives of the Company

352 M EBFHECMET - SRR T and their associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had the following

LJ‘

\|/

B
ot

ANBSEETEEFRIHNIZESTRINZESTE]) interests in the shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within
NEMARBARBREBHARSMBR AR the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
(B DELMBER - ARANES - &=17 recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under section
BAEBREBMBAZETRAUZERE )R -Z 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
—tF=ZA=+—AEAARR MEAEEE (A Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
HEBEHIEBIEXVEFTE M E R ) 2 IR 17D Mgz Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
N Code”):

(@ &QF (@) The Company

REE

Number of shares

HEBITH

BRER

EnfEn RGEEH

EARER REER AEER By Aok

Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting

a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares

fEEIE Cheong Hooi Hong 4,035,792 590,000 — 4,625,792 0.97%

SEIEMN Cheong Kheng Lim 46,023,872 115,292 — 46,139,164 9.72%

sE M Cheong Keng Hooi 26,862,036 1,002,384 — 27,864,420 5.87%

fEpede) Cheong Sim Lam 1,099,504 - - 1,099,504 0.23%

$ERIS Cheong Chong Ling 412,000 — — 412,000 0.09%

ik Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 2,000 - 115,200 117,200 0.02%
(31)(Note)

B RAAEHETA115200 BBEER QA Note: The corporate interests of 115,200 shares represent 115,200 shares
(—HREEREERAERBIESHEE held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ’]"ﬁ)Fﬂ%ﬁﬁ’\JHS,ZOOﬁHﬁ 7 e Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be
RIEFEHIRG) - EREWRRER LERG interested in such shares under the SFO.

BT
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EEREETHAEHEEMMI Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
% HERONEEHWELZR  Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares

RE () and Debentures (continued)
(b) SNEEFREEERA R (b) Associated International Hotels Limited
ZEREE

Number of ordinary shares

HEBITH
BRERE
ERER R EEH
EARER REERE REER By Aok
Total % of total
Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting
"A Name interests interests interests interests shares
IR Cheong Hooi Hong 2,073,992 - - 2,073,992 0.58%
SEIEM Cheong Kheng Lim 24,655,715 1,034,000 — 25,589,715 711%
e Cheong Keng Hooi 11,759,839 275,280 — 12,085,119 3.34%
fEpe) Cheong Sim Lam 1,807,155 24,000 — 1,831,155 0.51%
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 1,588,000 - — 1,588,000 0.44%
B Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 242,000 — 120,000 362,000 0.10%
(7£)(Note)
0 AREZ T 120,000/ &R EE R AR Note: The corporate interests of 120,000 shares represent 120,000 ordinary
(—MBAER Y R ERBUASHRKRE X shares held by Chason Limited (a company controlled by Mr Sin Cho Chiu,
[E) 5§l #9 2 &) BT A 79 120,000 4% % @ A% - Charles and his spouse in equal shares) where Mr Sin is taken to be
RIBE GO - SR ERBRR/ER L ERN interested in such shares under the SFO.

MRS -
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EENBERSTHRAEBEEENR
7~ HERMDMEEENER
R ()

(c) REBFRAT

Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures (continued)

(c) Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited

EERHE

Number of ordinary shares

EEBTH

BREE

EnfEn RAD B

PN REERE AR ER e B

Total % of total

Personal Family Corporate beneficial issued voting

a4 Name interests interests interests interests shares
IR Cheong Hooi Hong 25 - - 25 25%
SEIBM Cheong Kheng Lim 25 — — 25 25%
EfE Cheong Keng Hooi 25 - - 25 25%
fikeqe) Cheong Sim Lam 25 — — 25 25%

B EAPTIRERE SN - AR AIRIRRE S 5D 5362
BREBFNERMBET  SRRFETRAE
A AAARBRBZAELNER  R_F
—tHF=ZA=+—H ARAEF  HTBA
BNABEARETRANZER)DLEHRER

RS EAREEAE (A1 A 78 5 R0 BXVERFTEH
FEFE)NED - AR ERENERIORE

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors and
chief executives of the Company or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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FERREREMALTHEEMNIRD Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
MiBERMDNVERRIXE Shareholders and Other Persons in Shares and
Underlying Shares

G iR BE 2 A AR EE NGRS ITIRAEH As at 31 March 2017, other than the interests of the directors and chief
R AAREBRM  WEBECDKRBREFS executives of the Company as disclosed above, the Company has been
GHE336 M ELRENBLMANERETR - R notified of the following interests in the shares of the Company as recorded
TEHF=ZA=+—HEEARARODELS in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the
BT SFO:

IHEBITH

BRERERSD

igny-4= BENBEILL
Number of Percentage of total
shares issued voting shares

REEBRAT Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited 237,370,032 50.001%

$BIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 46,139,164 9.72%
(311)(Note 1)

SEffmrE Cheong Keng Hooi 27,864,420 5.87%
(7£2)(Note 2)

WA & Lim Yoke Soon 46,139,164 9.72%
(351)(Note 1)

MEE Wu Soo Huei 27,864,420 5.87%
(7£2)(Note 2)

e Notes:

(1) EEMEEMBPENRZAMNBEELZTEEZD 1) The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim is the same as the 46,139,164
46,139,164 8% B% 1 fH R ° 7£46,139,164 & R&{n - shares disclosed by Ms Lim Yoke Soon. Out of the 46,139,164 shares,
46,023,872/ REETBM L EHFA - 115,202k Al A E 46,023,872 shares were held by Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, and 115,292 shares
EEMB B LHE - were held by his spouse, Ms Lim Yoke Soon.

©) EMBEEMBPENRSAREEZLTEED @ The interest disclosed by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi is the same as the 27,864,420
27,864,420 % f& 10 #E R © 7£27,864,420 8% B {5 - shares disclosed by Ms Wu Soo Huei. Out of the 27,864,420 shares,
26,862,036[% /4818 5 £ #5E - 1,002,384 % Al & 26,862,036 shares were held by Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, and 1,002,384 shares
HEBREELLER - were held by his spouse, Ms Wu Soo Huei.

M BUFTIREEIN R E—+F=/=+—H" Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, no other interests or short

ARRVTEEBNBEHATNEMELERES positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company required to be
16151 2533615 M 7B E R B Ae B9 AN A &A% (7 A #E recorded in the register kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO
AR MDEIERIORE © have been notified to the Company.
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Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance, to which the
Company, its parent company or controlling shareholder or any of their
respective subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with him (within the meaning of section 486 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) had a material interest (whether directly
or indirectly), was entered into in the year or subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Disclosure Relating to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules

At the Company level, there are no changes in respect of the directors’
emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2017 when compared with the

last financial year.

At the Group level, the changes in the directors’ emoluments for the year
ended 31 March 2017 as compared with the last financial year are due
to allowances for expenses actually incurred by the executive directors at
the subsidiary level. The Group’s policy regarding such expenses has not

changed.

Indemnity of Directors
A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in

force and was in force throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2017.
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EEEHN Management Contracts

@@ AREEEES0.01%HEZHH B AR — b (@)  Agreements exist between the Company and AIHL, a 50.01% owned
MARNRFIEEHROE - BREZSH subsidiary, whereby AIHL agrees to provide administrative services
Z o RS ARRTIRBITHRAE (AT (company secretarial) and non-administrative services (office facilities
Wi)&3!51?&}%&7%(%/&:?&5@&%&%) o and staff) to the Company for an indefinite period. The aggregate
ARBIRBE-_ZE—+tF=-A=+—81 fees paid to AIHL for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted to
ﬁgmﬁﬁ%ﬂmmm%%m%@ﬁmm HK$1,200,000 (2016: HK$1,200,000).
1,2000007C( =Z—7<4F « 7#£1,200,0007T) ©

b) EMEBERTMESEERA([FEZR (o) A management agreement exists between AIHL and DTZ Cushman

ﬁDMTT e.f%a o IRIEWRFE - BERIT
% **HF&%E’\JHWE‘JWM s ZEBWZEDH
“FENANBRER+=EAR - Hig
BEFEBES A ERELR L -
BE-_Z—tFZA=1+—ALFE s
B X E R E S &% 600,000 T

’M

& Wakefield Property Management Limited (‘DTZ”) whereby DTZ is
responsible for general building and property management (except
for the services relating to tenancy) of ISQUARE. The management
agreement was renewed for a term of twelve months commencing
on 6 August 2012 and shall be automatically renewed on an annual
basis thereafter, subject to the right of termination by AIHL. Manager’s

remuneration of HK$600,000 (2016: HK$600,000) was paid by AIHL

(ZZ—/XEF - #A¥600,0007T) ° for the year ended 31 March 2017.
B EALFTHERE SN - ZRD AR AR E E R 1]
REFT A RERNEAEREAIHHE R
aH e

I

Apart from the foregoing, no contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company was entered into or existed during the year.
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EEE Fixed Assets

REEBRREWENT - Particulars of the investment properties of the Group are set out as follows:

HERSEREEYE Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation
i B RERR HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
RES(PREMRNVENRHAE) YL R HR

BRI IR BB N =57
(NLBEIBER 742555 )
iISQUARE (exclude an office on 9th Floor) Shopping centre Medium
63 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

(Kowloon Inland Lot No. 7425)

BT ®KNE TiHREFBAL AR
HNABRL - — ARG K

HRLT ~ L2~ L3N LAfZEfL

NEBETRE-AZAR

(BB AR 225%)
Good Luck Industrial Building Workshops and Medium
Unit A on the Ground and 1st Floor, car parking spaces

and Car Parking Spaces Nos.

L1, L2, L3 & L4 on the Ground Floor,
105 How Ming Street,

Kwun Tong, Kowloon

(Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 22)

PHET D Y BRYE - FEMNRER A
R i ZERE

NERDEDXABNET /R

(RN BB ERS7805%5%)

Goodluck Industrial Centre Petrol filing station, Medium
Ground, 2nd, 3rd and 4th Floors, showrooms, car parking
808 Lai Chi Kok Road, spaces and car workshops

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
(New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 5780)
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Fixed Assets (continued)
Properties held for leasing and capital appreciation

(Continued)
1o B RERRE HEFH
Location Existing use Term of lease
BRFEE 0 WA= RH
g
EETmBR =2+ &
BEHEP_T—E_T=5%
(/8551 B2 3665%)
Euro Trade Centre Offices Long

5th Floor,

Nos. 13-14 Connaught Road Central and
Nos. 21-23 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

(Marine Lot No.366)

HRZES

SE—ZE YR
RN TS
BRABE=T=9%

Yi An Plaza

Unit 1 to 14, 8th Floor,
No. 33 Jianshe Liu Road,
Yuexiu District,
Guangzhou, PRC

N A
Offices Medium
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FEEFRMHER
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RAFERTMARR  ARAES  HETHE
ASEFKE (BEFEMATREARREHET
BDBES%IA L) S ERAELETERFPNIE
fal 2 ©

RITERRHEMER
—2—tFZ A=+ AMBTERR
HAbfEHR - SEESUN BTSRRI 20222 -

>
i
i)
=

BRRETE]
AR EROR R3S R TR B 2225 -

ZERBRX
AEBRARFEARNERZ BN AEB240,0007T
(ZZT—7<F : B¥1,288,0007T) °

ARERENREAREBR - HE
FEEH EHES

AEER - ARFRIETHER T HBE -
S KB A AR EHES o

RANTRIFRE
ERAMTFARAEHZ EHREAANEES
AT BEATHRASBAL  AAT—EMH
ETRAETRZ ARKRE -
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the Group’s revenue attributable to the largest customer
and to the five largest customers accounted for 11% and 32% of the
Group’s total revenue respectively. The five largest suppliers of the Group

accounted for less than 30% by value of the Group’s total purchases.

At no time during the year have the directors, their close associates or any
member of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the number of issued shares of the Company) had any

interest in these major customers.

Bank Loan and Other Borrowings
Particulars of bank loan and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2017 are set out in notes 20 to 22 to the financial statements.

Retirement Schemes
Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 25 to the financial

statements.

Charitable Donations
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted to
HK$240,000 (2016: HK$1,288,000).

Purchase, Sale or Redemption by the Company
and its Subsidiaries of its Listed Securities
There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the Company’s listed

securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float under the

Listing Rules.
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Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five financial years is set out on pages 147 to 148 of the annual report.

Auditor

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Cheong Hooi Hong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr Cheong Hooi Hong, aged 70, has been the Chairman and a director
of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983
and 1984 respectively. He currently is the Chief Executive Officer and the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited and various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong is
a member of both the CPA Australia and the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He holds a diploma from the Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology in Commerce. He has extensive experience in
property development and investment both in Hong Kong and Singapore for

over 50 years.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Kheng Lim, Cheong Keng Hooi

and Cheong Sim Lam.

Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, aged 68, has been the Deputy Chairman and a
director of the Company since 1983 and 1969 respectively. He has been
the Deputy Chairman and a director of Associated International Hotels
Limited since 1984. He currently is the Chief Operation Officer of Associated
International Hotels Limited and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr Cheong is
also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and various

subsidiaries in the Group.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Keng Hooi
and Cheong Sim Lam and is also the father of Miss Cheong Chong Ling, a

director.

Mr Cheong Keng Hooi, aged 64, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Project Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. Mr Cheong holds a degree of Bachelor of

Business Administration from the University of Hawaii.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Sim Lam.
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Executive Directors (continued)
Mr Cheong Sim Lam, aged 58, has been a director of the Company and
Associated International Hotels Limited since 1983 and 1984 respectively.
He is the Chief Investment Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited.
He is also a director of Tian Teck Investment Holding Co., Limited and
various subsidiaries in the Group. He obtained a certificate in Accounting
and General Business from Kapiolani Community College, Hawaii and has

over 37 years of working experience.

He is a brother of directors, Messrs Cheong Hooi Hong, Cheong Kheng Lim

and Cheong Keng Hooi.

Miss Cheong Chong Ling, aged 46, joined the Group as an assistant to
directors in 1997. She has been a director of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited since 2007. She is the Chief Administration
Officer of Associated International Hotels Limited. Miss Cheong holds a
degree of Bachelor of Science from the School of Hotel Administration at

Cornell University.

She is the daughter of Mr Cheong Kheng Lim, a director.

Non-executive Director

Mr Sin Cho Chiu, Charles, OBE, aged 81, has been a director of the
Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since 1984 and
1985 respectively. He currently also serves on the audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company and Associated International
Hotels Limited. Mr Sin is a solicitor and holds a degree of Master of Arts
from the University of Cambridge. He was Chairman of Kam Ngan Stock
Exchange from 1985 to 1986. He was also a former Chairman of the Home
Ownership Scheme Committee and the Management Committee of the
Hong Kong Housing Authority and a former member of the Urban Council

and the Executive Committee of the Housing Society.
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Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr Chow Wan Hoi, Paul, aged 61, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee (as chairman),
remuneration committee (as chairman) and nomination committee (as
member) of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited. Mr
Chow has significant experience in accounting and finance and has been an
Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
since 1983 and an Associate of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
Australia since 1988 and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr Yau Allen Lee-nam, aged 76, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited since
2004. He currently also serves on the audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company and Associated
International Hotels Limited. Mr Yau has extensive legal knowledge and
experience. He qualified as a barrister in England in 1964 and practised as
an advocate and solicitor in Singapore and Malaysia, and as an advocate in
the State of Brunei before coming to Hong Kong. Mr Yau was admitted to

Hong Kong Bar in 1985 and practised as a barrister until 2001.

Mr Tse Pang Yuen, aged 71, has been an independent non-executive
director of the Company since 2004. He currently also serves on the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Mr Tse is a veteran lawyer. He is admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong, England and Singapore and has been a managing partner of Messrs
Stephen Lo & P. Y. Tse, Solicitors since 1987.
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Senior Management
Miss Susan Chan So Some, aged 66, joined the Group in 1987 and has
been the financial controller since 1990. Prior to joining the Group, Miss
Chan was a chief accountant of the Group’s ultimate holding company. She

has over 37 years of experience in accounting and financial management.

Mr Choi Ming Kwan, aged 60, joined the Company in 1981 and has been

the Group’s project manager since 1990.

Ms Ng Sau Fong, ACIS, ACS, aged 47, holds a degree of Bachelor of Arts
from The University of Hong Kong. Ms Ng joined the Group in 1992 as
assistant to directors and has been the company secretary of the Company

and Associated International Hotels Limited since 2004.

Ms Wong Siu Mei, CPA, aged 48, is the accounting manager of the
Company. She holds a degree of Master of Professional Accounting from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Prior to joining the Company in
2008, Ms Wong worked for a multinational corporation over 9 years in field

of accounting and treasury.

Note: Miss Chan, Mr Choi and Ms Ng are employed by Associated International
Hotels Limited and serve the Company pursuant to the management agreement
between the Company and Associated International Hotels Limited.
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Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Independent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of Tian Teck Land Limited

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tian Teck Land
Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages
81 to 146, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2017, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant

accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our opinion.
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B EZSIE Key Audit Matters

BREEZEHEISRERMOEZLE  RAHK Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
G A RRN B AERENSEIE - 5itH were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
BHeEARMEREEseERREEAEE B statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
EITERIER - B TS Y ELRHEREHEBNE context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
"o in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

REMENGE

Valuation of investment properties

DEIE A IR 12 R @R 1(d)

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

BRERSBE
The key audit matter

BANERNTREZSEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ERERBEERFEARKNEREHREREDE - &
LI EMENTE2RRREEES - BRBESLEES
SOH - B EFEERERBYHL

The Group holds a portfolio of investment properties located
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China. These
investment properties are primarily represented by iISQUARE,
a shopping and entertainment complex located in Tsim Sha

Tsui, Hong Kong.

IR ERIR NS Y AR B RN HZ R R AT B NIRRT TT
WEE  FHEREMEROAAEE -

Management’s assessment of the fair value of investment
properties is based on valuations performed by an external
property valuer in accordance with recognised industry

standards.

REMEHENED —ERREHRZEFERENE
WA - FRRENSIEETEENLBEMRR -

One of the key drivers of the valuation of investment
properties is rental income which can be volatile, particularly
in light of the current economic status of the retail industry in

Hong Kong.

B EYEGHENBZEFBEUTER
Our audit procedures in relation to the valuation of investment

properties included the following:

o FHESMEMEMLEMEERRERDEGMENSRRE
FEHE - AR P R BRS¢
assessing the qualifications of the external property valuer,
their experience and expertise in the properties being

valued and their objectivity and independence;

e  ERUBEHEREZEHNIMNEGERMAEEETER
EMEN AR EBEMRENMBERS
obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group on
which the management’s assessment of the fair value of

investment properties was based;

o ESNEMMERN I HREMEEREERMEANEZER
SR
discussing with the external property valuer their valuation
methodology and key estimates and assumptions adopted

in the valuations;
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REMENGE

Valuation of investment properties

Key Audit Matters (continued)

DA IR 12 R @R 1(d)

Refer to note 12 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policy in note 1(d).

HEREXRERE
The key audit matter

BANERNTREZSE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

HMEERENREYMELET RAREZSE  BR
REWELEFERB TEXNG - TEFESE AN HE
FfEET - EMGINT B E R EEARRNRR -

We identified valuation of the Group’s investment properties
as a key audit matter because the valuation of investment
properties is inherently subjective and requires significant
judgement and estimation which increases the risk of error or

potential management bias.

FEHRMOA B EMEAERNHET - FHALINSYI R
BERFTERAMRES A

with the assistance of our internal property valuation
specialists, evaluating the valuation methodology applied

by the external property valuer;

BB EINEMEMEMESREMEMET AN E
25t RBRER A AT I5 2R M A BUT R B IS 4T
SRR HRAETRBNEIEGFNER(BEER
b= - BT MBHES M LB TSR 5 ) IREE
5

challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted
in the valuations, including capitalisation rates, prevailing
market rents and comparable market transactions, by
comparing the key estimates and assumptions used by the
external property valuer in the valuation of each investment
property with market available data and government

produced market statistics;

ERANER - WEREEER - REREEERINE
MESLEMRENEEES REBEE  ARBEA R
MR ER -

comparing, on a sample basis, the tenancy information,
including committed rents and occupancy rates, provided
by the Group to the external property valuer with underlying

contracts and documentation.

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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o B 3 B8

o TR W

ERREERDEERTEEEEENYBRE
BRHEE -

Information Other Than the Consolidated
Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise

appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative

but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their

responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept

liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so0 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s

report is Ho Wai Ming.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

28 June 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

BE-Z—tHE=A=+—BILEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
BfsE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
N Revenue S 673,445 680,544
RRTS A A Cost of services (83,934) (82,111)
EF Gross profit 589,511 598,433
Hapg A Other revenue 5 5,647 3,421
HAbE18558 Other net loss 5 (2,512) (2,013)
1THER Administrative expenses (40,430) (41,363)
REYEMLBESERN Profit from operations before valuation
KRR changes in investment properties 552,216 558,478
REYEGEER), Net valuation (losses)/gains on investment
B F=E properties 12(a) (628,277) 410,505
BREVEMLBEEZBEN (Loss)/profit from operations after
R (|mR) wF valuation changes in investment
properties (76,061) 968,983
A AR Finance costs 6(a) (3,374) (2,458)
MRBLAT (E1E) A (Loss)/profit before taxation 6 (79,435) 966,525
FriSHit Income tax 9(a) (90,721) (91,948)
AEE(ER),BAR (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
2HIRALEE income for the year (170,156) 874,577
T A LB : Attributable to:
— NAERKR — Equity shareholders of the Company (90,612) 438,966
— IR AR R A — Non-controlling interests (79,544) 435,611
KEE(FR)BIR (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
2HEBALLEE income for the year (170,156) 874,577
SR(ER) BF — EAR#EHE (Loss)/earnings per share
- basic and diluted 11 $(0.19) $0.92

SE8TAEE 146 AN EBE AP B IMEAN —FF D
JEA X AR 2 AR SR AR B Y B DB T RE10 ©

The notes on pages 87 to 146 form part of these financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company are set

out in note 10.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZB—+tE=A=+—HB(LB%%I’R) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
FasE Fr Tt
Note $’000 $'000
REBEE Non-current assets
BEEE Fixed assets 12(a)
— B — Investment properties 14,377,471 15,007,687
— HiE - B RERE — Other properties, plant and equipment 72,420 78,936
14,449,891 15,086,623
REEE Current assets
FEULERSK « AT RFEI R Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 14 22,658 21,526
EEPRITIER Pledged bank deposits 15 134,981 161,791
Be kIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 16 430,830 380,785
AR FT 1SR Current tax recoverable 9(c) 315 —
588,784 564,102
RENEE Current liabilities
RITER — BiKE Bank loan — secured 20 - 200,000
HibEM RN ERTE R Other payables and accruals 17 23,358 25,855
2HETE Deposits received 18 198,359 207,401
REIRS & %G Provision for long service payments 19 1,513 1,581
B E T E AR IE Obligations under finance leases 21 29 29
RERFET PSR Current tax payable 9(c) 19,915 23,350
243,174 458,216
REBEERE Net current assets 345,610 105,886
EEAERRBER Total assets less current liabilities 14,795,501 15,192,509
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
SRITER — Bk Bank loan — secured 20 200,000 =
FENBUTHE Government lease premiums payable 22 1,920 1,980
A e Obligations under finance leases 21 46 75
RIETIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 9(d) 64,333 56,756
266,299 58,811
EEFE NET ASSETS 14,529,202 15,133,698
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SZE MR RE Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZB—tHE=A=+—HB(LB%%I’R) At 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
BfsE Fr Tt
Note $'000 $'000

BEARRF#E CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
%N Share capital 23(b) 121,830 121,830
EE Reserves 7,334,597 7,643,585
7,456,427 7,765,415
TR IR R ER Non-controlling interests 7,072,775 7,368,283
EREEE TOTAL EQUITY 14,529,202 15,133,698

FEN T —EFRAS TN\ BT B o

EBZE BZE
EEE BT
EF146 BN EB ARG IHRERN — &7 -

Cheong Hooi Hong

Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017.

Cheong Kheng Lim

Director

The notes on pages 87 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BHE-ZE—tHE=A=+—BILEE(UE%FI’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

ARERRREN
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FER
RE  EBftRE  REEH #E  kRREz: ERAE
Non-
Share Revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital reserve earnings Total interests equity
i3 Tr Tr T Tr Tr Tr
Note $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
W201554 81 HMES Balance at 1 April 2015 121,830 900,951 6,522,044 7,544,825 7,148,636 14,693,461
rEERRZEE Changes in equity for the year:
AEERFIR Profit and total comprehensive
EAE N income for the year - - 438,966 438,966 435,611 874,577
BRL—0REE Dividends approved in respect of
BOERRRS the previous financial year 10(0) - - (109,188)  (109,188) = (109,188)
BRABREE Dividends declared in respect of
BEIRERE the current financial year 10(a) - - (109,188)  (109,188) = (109,188)
A FEPERRAR R EOR% S, Dividends paid to non-controling
interests — - - - (215,964) (215,964)
M2016%£3831HK  Balance at 31 March 2016 and
2016F4B1BM&E 1 April 2016 121,830 900,951 6,742,634  7,765415 7,368,283 15,133,698
AEERFZEE Changes in equity for the year:
AEEBER Loss and total comprehensive
FEMAEE income for the year - - (90,612) (90,612) (79,544)  (170,156)
BRE—BEE Dividends approved in respect of
ERRE the previous financial year 10() - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188)
BRABHFE Dividends declared in respect of
BEIRARE the current financial year 10(a) - - (109,188)  (109,188) - (109,188)
S IR AR R AIARS.  Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - (215,964) (215,964)
M201743F31 BHV%E: Balance at 31 March 2017 121,830 900,951 6,433,646 7,456,427 7,072,775 14,529,202

FETEEF 46BN EBAMIEHREN —3H © The notes on pages 87 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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mERERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-Z—tHE=A=+—BILEE(UE%II’R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
s Fr T
Note $°000 $°000
TR Operating activities
BRI (EB), & (Loss)/profit before taxation (79,435) 966,525
FEEIEE - Adjustments for:
— FBHA — Interest income (4,047) (3,346)
— BEKA — Finance costs 3,374 2,458
—ihE — Depreciation 7,068 7,419
— REMEMLE — Net valuation losses/(gains) on
&8 (BF)F5E investment properties 628,277 (410,505)
— REETEEEEFE — Net loss on disposals of fixed assets 7 14
— SNBSS N B 1R — Foreign exchange loss 2,508 1,998
EEESE AL EF Operating profit before changes in
working capital 557,752 564,563
EUERT ~ 314 RFERT (Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable,

(), m deposits and prepayments (999) 3,811
EfMENRREETE AR Y Decrease in other payables and accruals (2,309) (450)
BUETL ORA) A0 (Decrease)/increase in deposits received (9,042) 6,008
REIRTG S E/BORL), /1IN (Decrease)/increase in provision for long

service payments (68) 147
FERTER AT HOE R A Decrease in government lease premiums

payable (57) (54)
BEEERMBHRS Cash generated from operations 545,277 574,025
EFRIA Tax paid
— BENEERNEH — Hong Kong profits tax paid (86,622) (84,281)
— B ERIE — PRC tax paid (272) (223)
RETERBHNRESFE Net cash generated from

operating activities 458,383 489,521
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SZERESRER Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BE-_Z—tF=A=1+—BLFE (B R) Forthe year ended 31 March 2017 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2017 2016
s Fr T
Note $°000 $°000
RETE Investing activities
BFIE Interest received 3,913 3,338
BABRTEENK Payment for purchase of fixed assets
(TP EFEREYE) other than investment properties (559) (258)
WEWES N Payment for expenditure on
investment properties (901) (3,430)
DR ITIEFORD (3G HN)  Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits 26,810 (9,073)
REZBFE(FTH)K Net cash generated from/(used in)
REFE investing activities 29,263 (9,423)
BEEE Financing activities
ENRERERESHEARED Capital element of finance lease rentals paid (29) (29)
2T HE RS Interest paid on government lease premiums
payable (102) (105)
BRITERFE Interest paid on bank loan (2,153) (2,150)
[RENEEEUAEE /PN Other borrowing costs paid (972 (250)
B IRE Dividends paid (218,376) (218,376)
BT IR AR ER AR Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (215,964) (215,964)
AEEBTANESFE Net cash used in financing activities (437,596) (436,874)
BHERESEFEYWIMTEE  Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 50,050 43,204
72016/2015F4 1B K Cash and cash equivalents at
BERBRESZEEY 1 April 2016/2015 380,785 337,563
IMNEERESBNE Effect of foreign exchange rates changes (5) @)
M3ASTEMNEER Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
REZEY 16 430,830 380,785

FETEEF 46BN EBAMIEHREN —3H © The notes on pages 87 to 146 form part of these financial statements.
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p T E R
Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1
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1

Significant Accounting Policies

(@

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting policies adopted by

the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and

prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.
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(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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:

B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2017 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries

(together referred to as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except that the
investment properties are stated at their fair value as explained

in the accounting policies set out in note 1(d).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other

sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive

rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For
each business combination, the Group can elect to measure
any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders

of the Company.
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(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(©

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an

investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 1(h)(ii), unless the investment is classified as held for sale.
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest (see note 1(f)) to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the statement of financial
position at fair value, unless they are still in the course of
construction or development at the end of the reporting period
and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time.
Any gain or loss arising from a change in fair value or from the
retirement or disposal of an investment property is recognised
in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is

accounted for as described in note 1(p)(i).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property
is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease (see
note 1(f)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that
interest as are applied to other investment properties leased
under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted for as

described in note 1(f).
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

Other properties, plant and equipment
Other properties, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation (see note 1(g)) and impairment

losses (see note 1(h)(ii)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of other properties, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss

on the date of retirement or disposal.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as an investment property
on a property-by-property basis and, if classified
as investment property, is accounted for as if held

under a finance lease (see note 1(d)); and
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(f) Leased assets (Continued)

)

(i

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(Continued)

— land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building situated
thereon at the inception of the lease, is accounted
for as being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an operating
lease. For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are recognised
as fixed assets and the corresponding liabilities, net
of finance charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which
write off the cost of the assets over the term of the
relevant lease or, where it is likely that the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set
out in note 1(g). Impairment losses are accounted for in
accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
1(h)(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are
charged to profit or loss over the period of the leases so
as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate
of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

93



94

B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Leased assets (Continued)

(i) Operating lease charges
Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in

the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term except where the property is classified as an

investment property (see note 1(d)).

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of other
properties, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated

useful lives as follows:

— Land and buildings Over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 40

years after the date of completion

— Furniture, fixtures 5 years

and equipment

— Motor vehicles 5 years



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(9)

Depreciation (Continued)

Where parts of an item of other properties, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention to the Group

about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the debtor will enter

bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
— significant changes in the technological, market,

economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

95



96

B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESFEEX @)
(h BEERE @)

JFE Uit AR 35K A0 L it 7 LA 35K ) AR
B(&)

EEMERERFE - AR
EEIRIRAT T B E MR

A AR SR AN A PR Y R L
RSN EL A & U R T
IR EERX %a%
BEREEIAE ERNERE
BERERAHERAEERERNX
(BEIREREBEE
Bt ENBRME) TR
MR RRR SR ERE
ZREMEERE - 0%F
TREEABRUNRR
e PIansEirya B 1S
N R AE B AR AT s
HWE - AIBEENEER
FrfErT - RREFHERED
EREENAIRERE
ERBEZARERAF
BUEERREENEE
BB EERERHE -

SRR BRI E AR A
R - B8 LR
EERREREEENEMF
BRE - QIR EER
EEE - BEBREE T
FEfE B ERIRE EBEE
AR SRR A HERIER
BEREMECEEREK
o

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

:

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)
If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

= For accounts and other receivables carried
at amortised cost, the impairment losses of
bad and doubtful debts are measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these
financial assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk

characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be linked objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.
A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which
would have been determined had no impairment

loss been recognised in prior years.
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

)

Impairment of accounts and other receivables
(Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of accounts receivable,
whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote.
In this case, the impairment losses for bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against
accounts receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that other properties, plant and equipment and
investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement
of financial position may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have

decreased.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

1 FESHEE® 1 Significant Accounting Policies continued)
(h) EBEBRE®E (h) Impairment of assets (Continued)
iy HtBEEREGE) (i)  Impairment of other assets (Continued)

MREBFEMEEDR - BIZ If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable

BEMFAIKEIZERS T GG o amount is estimated.

—  FrEAKEEEE —  Calculation of recoverable amount
BER N EEEEAEA The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
REEREEEKANEA of its fair values less costs of disposal and value
SEEMEFREEMRS in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
AR & A% - E51HE future cash flows are discounted to their present
FREER - SERAKRK value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
AIHTIR G MR RIS current market assessments of the time value of
MEWFBRERE - ZITH money and the risks specific to the asset. Where
P R ML T 5 E R T RT an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
HHEBREEENZE independent of those from other assets, the
ENEERR - nREE recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
FTEARRSRAZEAR E group of assets that generates cash inflows
TEYREMEEFTEE independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

WIREMA - RILABEIEL
EXRSRANRNEE
$RBI(BIIR S EAEBIT)R

& AT Bl B o
—  ERFEEE —  Recognition of impairment losses

INREESMBREES An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
BIUHEREESRE AU if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
O] grEERy - FYEBET generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
HRREEE - SRS E its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
HEEBEITERN B EEIE recognised in respect of cash-generating units
SR B A% B T (X are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
BT NEERNRE assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
& BEEMNERARETS basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
WA EEREBERNARE will not be reduced below its individual fair value
BRI B AE TS less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use
BH(gest2) Sk EFAE (if determinable).

BE(INEEEETE)
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (Continued)

(h)

(i

(i)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

are recognised.

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited

to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group

is required to prepare an interim financial report in

compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 1(h)())
and (ii)).

Accounts and other receivables
Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair

value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective

interest method, less allowance for impairment of bad and

doubtful debts (see note 1(h)()), except where the receivables

are interest-free loans made to related parties without any

fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be

immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost

less allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful debts.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

:

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

0)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees

payable, using the effective interest method.

Accounts and other payables

Accounts and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they

are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated

statement of cash flows.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are

stated at their present values.

(i) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs

involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax

payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and

unused tax credits.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax

loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets
and liabilities are the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are
not part of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences,

unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(d), the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured using the tax
rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying
value at the reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through sale. In all other
cases, the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting

period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable

that sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally

enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current

tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a

net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they

relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

= different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets

and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis

or realise and settle simultaneously.

(0) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Company or the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated

at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the

obligation.
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(0)

Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income

in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(i) Dividends
Dividend income from listed investments is recognised

when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the

effective interest method.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
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:

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(@

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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1 Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(s) Related parties (continued)
(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(i

()

(V)

(vii)

(viil

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a

member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced

by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s

various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that

are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of

these, the following amendments are relevant to the Group:

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the

Group’s results and financial position for the current or prior periods

have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is

not yet effective for the current accounting period.
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

Revenue

The principal activity of the Group is property investment.

Revenue represents gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only one
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. During the year, revenue from this customer amounted to

approximately $77,251,000 (2016: $82,545,000).

Segment Information
The Group has a single reportable segment which is “Property
leasing”. Accordingly, the business segment information for this sole

reportable segment is equivalent to the consolidated figures.
No separate geographical information is presented as the Group’s

revenue and results of property leasing were derived from Hong Kong

and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Other Revenue and Net Loss

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
HAn A Other revenue
FEHA Interest income 4,047 3,346
IRATR TR EFTESHEEE  Compensation from early termination of lease 1,005 =
Hth Others 595 75
5,647 3,421
Hit 58358 Other net loss
RERBTEEERIEFHE Net loss on disposals of fixed assets @) (14)
GNESSTE 3 BT 18 F RE Net foreign exchange loss (2,505) (1,999)
(2,512) (2,013)
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

6 BRBiAI(EE),ImF

BREiAT(E1R), aFIE R, (GEA) :

6 (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2017 2016
Fx Tt
$°000 $'000
(@) ®WEHE (@) Finance costs
RITERFE Interest on bank loan 2,304 2,104
JRE AT IR I (B ) Interest on government lease
premiums payable 100 103
E A FRACAR Other borrowing costs 970 251
3,374 2,458
(b) BIMAE (b)  Staff costs
e TENMEMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 42,785 42,248
A ERFERIKRET B Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans 1,225 1,362
44,010 43,610
(c) HfEH (c) Otheritems
REYFENES Gross rental income from
N L] investment properties (673,445) (680,544)
W B Less: Direct outgoings 83,934 82,111
(589,511) (598,433)
Gl e Auditor’s remuneration
— ZER — audit services 1,191 1,191
— IS ARTS — tax services 86 86
— HAh AR — other services 338 338
e Depreciation 7,068 7,419
EKEE TR EE B Impairment losses on accounts receivable 17 323

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EEME 7 Directors’ Emoluments
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) i M~ &) (# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
TEEFSEE)IBHIYFE 225 3R 5= = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST : (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as
follows:
b= RAFTE 2017
ExHE REVNZ BEEAL 5 b
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
T T T T T
$°000 $000 $'000 $000 $000
HITES Executive Directors
EIEE Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,561 700 - 2,361
SEIBAR Cheong Kheng Lim 100 2,719* 700 - 3,519
i Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,604 300 - 2,004
L Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,876 300 - 2,276
$EIA1L Cheong Chong Ling 100 1,171 120 21 1,412

FHITES Non-executive Director

VEAERE Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650

BYFHITEE Independent Non-executive

Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 - - - 340
=3 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 - - - 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 - - - 170

1,450 9,481 2,120 21 13,072
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

7 EFMMEwm 7 Directors’ Emoluments (continued)
RIEEBCR BMEBI Y 383(1) i A &) (# Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the
TEEFSEE)IBHIYFE 2205 3R 5= = B Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
ST - (8) (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as

follows: (Continued)

e =28 RRETE 2016
EEHe REMH = BTETEAL R k]
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
Tt Tt T Tt Tt
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
HITES Executive Directors
iE1E)E Cheong Hooi Hong 100 1,510 700 = 2,310
BB Cheong Kheng Lim 100 3,796 700 - 4,596
e Cheong Keng Hooi 100 1,641 300 - 2,041
fepede) Cheong Sim Lam 100 1,838 300 = 2,238
BRI Cheong Chong Ling 100 404 120 21 645
FHTES Non-executive Director
VEAE R Sin Cho Chiu, Charles 100 550 - - 650
BIUKHITEE Independent Non-executive
Directors
AEE Chow Wan Hoi, Paul 340 = = = 340
25 Yau Allen Lee-nam 340 = = — 340
T Tse Pang Yuen 170 = = = 170
1,450 9,739 2,120 21 13,330
* EHEIBREREEMR T ERBEFEME * The amount excludes the benefits for the provision of residential
@A - HEtEES $£4%/2,898,0007T properties to Mr Cheong Kheng Lim with an aggregate estimated rental
(ZZ—7"% : 3,210,0007T) ° value of approximately $2,898,000 (2016: $3,210,000).
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

8 EmmMEAL 8 Individuals with Highest Emoluments
ZEANEFEERZEtFFERUEMNE The five highest paid individuals for 2016 and 2017 are all directors of
WATHARARINES - ESE5IHR the Company whose emoluments are disclosed in note 7.

P57 o

9 FiEMH 9 Income Tax

(@ HFEeBEmkEMEERAR (@) Taxation in the consolidated statement
B SRHIES ¢ of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income represents:

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
AHIBIE — FHBFEH  Current tax — Hong Kong profits tax
REERRIALERE Provision for the year 82,973 84,173
EFEEERT Over-provision in respect of prior years (92) (60)
82,881 84,113
AEBIE — Current tax — PRC
REEFIALEN Provision for the year 263 299
ELEHIE Deferred tax
REMEARBENE Changes in fair value of investment properties 24 (178)
iR 2= FL A EE AR AN EE ) Origination and reversal of temporary
differences 7,553 7,714
7,577 7,536
90,721 91,948
BENERERBZIRAFTE NG The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at
FERT B & A A 16.5% (= ZF — /R F - 16.5% (2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits for
16.5%) ML K58 - FEBIIALIR the year. PRC taxation is calculated based on the applicable
B AR A 2 R TS E AR P R e B R 5t rate of taxation in accordance with the relevant tax rules and
Ho regulations of the PRC.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 mEH @

9 Income Tax (continued)

(b) PTEH X HMizE AR ES (b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
gait(EE) SRR EER ¢ accounting (loss)/profit at applicable tax
rates:
2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
BRAEAT(E1E), s A (Loss)/profit before taxation (79,435) 966,525
IR MRRARI RS % F  Notional tax on (loss)/profit before taxation,
B AR R E BRI AT calculated at the rates applicable to
(E518), % FEEERIE  profits in the countries concerned (12,806) 159,820
PRIV HAIFRIES 2 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 104,055 569
BAEHWENTIIEFZE  Tax effect of non-taxable income (436) (68,381)
AEFEEERT Over-provision in prior years (92 (60)
BERFEES Actual tax expense 90,721 91,948
(€) #HEMBARRRTRHYZAES (c) Current taxation in the consolidated
Fri8HiA - statement of financial position represents:
2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
REEBEBNEGHLER Provision for Hong Kong profits tax
for the year 82,973 84,173
EANEHNIEH Provisional profits tax paid (63,440) (60,899)
19,533 23,274
R F IR PRC taxation 67 76
19,600 23,350
K& Representing:
NERFEUL TSR Current tax recoverable (315) —
INEAFES PR 1SR Current tax payable 19,915 23,350
19,600 23,350
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9 FrEHm 9 Income Tax (continued)
d) EERELHRIEAE : (d) Deferred tax liabilities recognised:

(e)

EEGA MR RERNELEH A
B ENERI D MAFEEBNT -

during the year are as follows:

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position and the movements

ik

REYE R EN
B4 mERHE i

Depreciation

allowances

Revaluation in excess of

of investment the related
properties depreciation Total
T Frx Fr
$°000 $°000 $°000

RETHZER Deferred tax arising from:
EEBE
120154818 At 1 April 2015 1,095 48,125 49,220
FEBzER (5F ), /#Bk (Credited)/charged to profit or loss (178) 7,714 7,536
M20164F3A31H At 31 March 2016 917 55,839 56,756
R2016F4 /818 At 1 April 2016 917 55,839 56,756
BP0k Charged to profit or loss 24 7,553 7,577
R2017F3A31H At 31 March 2017 941 63,392 64,333
REZWIELEHRIBEEE (e) Deferred tax assets not recognised:

ZRM 1N IS BER - BR
REEEEBBAMMISANEARNERER
BB ARRERFEF T AL SHEE
N [E i Kk 5L 145,881,000 (= F
—7N4F © 145,881,0007T ) B R 5HEL S
EERERABENREERIBEE - BI&
WITROE - BERBEETRERAR
H o

current tax legislation.
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In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(n),
the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
cumulative tax losses of $145,881,000 (2016: $145,881,000)
as it is not probable that future taxable profits against which
the losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax

jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not expire under
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

10 B2 10 Dividends
(@ AFEEMARERBRRR (@) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
B the Company attributable to the year
2017 2016
Fr FT
$°000 $000
B EIR NS EARR R Interim dividend declared and paid of
FM%0.237T $0.23 per share (2016: $0.23 per share)
(20164 : &AR0.237T) 109,188 109,188
R EEKERR Final dividend proposed after the end of
EE D IRARHRE the reporting period of $0.23 per share
F1%0.237T (2016: $0.23 per share)
(20164 : &AR0.237T) 109,188 109,188
218,376 218,376
RIS BER AR R EZ D IRA KA The final dividend proposed after the end of the reporting
s

() BRE—HBREEENAT ()
RESAIRSR - LRI R

REMAEREHEREARARE

period has not been recognised as a liability at the end of the
reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders
of the Company attributable to the previous

REZAHRE financial year, approved and paid during the
year
2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
BRLE—0HRFE - Final dividend in respect of the previous
WA E A R AT financial year, approved and paid
HIARHARR 8= 0%0.237T during the year, of $0.23 per share
(2016%F : #A%0.237T) (2016: $0.23 per share) 109,188 109,188

11 SR(ER) B — EXR
#E
BEREABR(ZZE—AE: 8REARX
BA) RERAFEN QA E=RRE
fiy /8 18 90,612,000 7t ( = T — /X F
& A 438,966,000 7T ) & B BT H R K
474,731,824 R (== — 754 : 474,731,824
BRIFTE - ZT—"NFR-ZZ—LFUEE
T T EEEAR 1 o

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

11

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share — Basic and
Diluted

The calculation of basic loss per share (2016: earnings per share) is
based on the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
of $90,612,000 (2016: a profit of $438,966,000) and 474,731,824
(2016: 474,731,824) shares in issue during the year. There were no
potential dilutive shares in existence in 2016 and 2017.



B K HE Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% % 5/R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BlEEE 12 Fixed Assets
(@) (@)
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
FER
BEME Hiyz HitgE et e
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
Fr Fr T Fr Fr
$°000 $°000 $000 $°000 $000
RASEE : Cost or valuation:
201654 81H  At1 April 2016 15,007,687 101,824 34,192 136,016 15,143,703
JEH TR Exchange adjustments (2,503) - - - (2,503)
HE Additions 1,014 - 559 559 1,573
RN Cost adjustment (450) - - - (450)
BRE Disposals - - (298) (298) (298)
DA EEFHE Fair value adjustments (628,277) - - - (628,277)
P201743H31H At 31 March 2017 14,377,471 101,824 34,453 136,277 14,513,748
Rk : Representing:
(3% Cost - 101,824 34,453 136,277 136,277
{8 —2017%F  Valuation — 2017 14,377,471 - - - 14,377,471
14,377,471 101,824 34,453 136,277 14,513,748
ZiiE Accumulated depreciation:
201654 B1H  At1April 2016 - 28,359 28,721 57,080 57,080
AEEHE Charge for the year - 3,519 3,549 7,068 7,068
o= 2e | Written back on disposals - - (291) (291) (291)
2017438318 At 31 March 2017 - 31,878 31,979 63,857 63,857
IREFE Net book value:
MN201743H31H At 31 March 2017 14,377,471 69,946 2,474 72,420 14,449,891
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

=5 L d i
12 }:E/QS% (48) 12 Fixed Assets (Continued)
(@ @ (@) (continued)
REMZE Bt - BERERE
Investment
properties Other properties, plant and equipment
HER
HFEXR
EEYE Hibz Hi & & AN e
Properties
held for
leasing
and capital Other Other
appreciation properties assets Sub-total Total
T T T T T
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
RS EE : Cost or valuation:
20154 81H  At1April 2015 14,597,963 101,824 34,048 135,872 14,733,835
ER AR Exchange adjustments (1,996) - - - (1,996)
HE Additions 1,415 — 258 258 1,673
RN F R Cost adjustment (200) - — = (200)
RE Disposals = = (114) (114) (114)
DA EEFHE Fair value adjustments 410,505 = = = 410,505
201643 H31H At 31 March 2016 15,007,687 101,824 34,192 136,016 15,143,703
K& : Representing:
AR Cost — 101,824 34,192 136,016 136,016
& — 20169  Valuation — 2016 15,007,687 = = — 15,007,687
15,007,687 101,824 34,192 136,016 15,143,703
ZIHiE . Accumulated depreciation:
20154 B1H At 1 April 2015 — 24,840 24,921 49,761 49,761
AEEHE Charge for the year = 3,519 3,900 7,419 7,419
otz 2e | Written back on disposals - - (100) (100) (100)
201643 A831H At 31 March 2016 - 28,359 28,721 57,080 57,080
IREFE Net book value:
M20164F3H31H At 31 March 2016 15,007,687 73,465 5,471 78,936 15,086,623
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BIlEEE@m)

T

m\ﬂﬂuﬂ\lﬂggﬁ

\

REMEN D EENE

—T—+t&F=A=+—H8" ' KE
%@ﬁmﬁ‘iﬁ( TEBEMRNE
PWAR) B IERLNE T

BT ENEMETEM - BRE

SHON—EBRERESHN—E -
J MEBEMNREENEEESN

BRPRAE —ETERENETE

iz~ —EEEYEN—EFELERE

0 2REBEER
TREJAKENHEHHEL

ERZER
BARKEEH B ®RE

HEEMGFEHNE
ZEPEE
I Y

F1SEI AR EEAEIFEDN

=@

REERER - AEE2R

AT EETDEF R AR EAE

BRERIZEMEE -

i}

B A (BIEHR BEA R
SEHER -

—BfMAE  RERSE
—ERmAEEIETE
BRERT S AREREE
KA ENREAERE)
KitBRAAEE

ZERME  FREZ
BREABERRES—
[B R E AT B Rt AMH)
WA E AR O] 87
REABRFAEARE
B - T EREABLE
KRS SRR 8 A E

=@BRiEE  FREX
iR B A B

NAfEE

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

Fair value measurement of investment
properties

At 31 March 2017, investment properties comprise iISQUARE

(b)

(exclude an office on 9th Floor), certain floors of Goodluck

Industrial Centre, certain units of Good Luck Industrial Building,

a floor of Euro Trade Centre and a floor of Yi An Plaza. Other

properties comprise an office on 9th Floor of iISQUARE, certain

units of an industrial property, a unit of a commercial property,

and two residential properties in Hong Kong.

)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
18, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the

inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

— Level 1 valuations: fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at

the measurement date

— Level 2 valuations: fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

= Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using

significant unobservable inputs
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

BREYMENDEBETE @

) 2AREEBRE
AEBAEEUARNABEFE
MBRENERHREF—EBRR
E_EBREE WBEZE=
EBRGEENZRENEITWT

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment

properties (Continued)

(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

None of the Group’s investment properties measured

at fair value are categorised into Level 1 and Level 2

valuations. The investment properties which are

categorised into Level 3 valuations are analysed as

below:

2017 2016
F T
$000 $’000
BEHEERTEMNDAREE Recurring fair value measurement
WEEEE =EBRMLED Investment properties categorised
LEYE into Level 3 valuations:
— R BB — Commercial properties
in Hong Kong 13,981,390 14,597,790
— (R EI R S 2 — Commercial properties in the PRC 41,641 43,907
— URBEBHTEYE — Industrial properties in Hong Kong 354,440 365,990
14,377,471 15,007,687

=t—HLFE &EF
—EREFE_ERHELEH
RER  MRE=ERTES
AREHY - REBEWBREKZ

MRBEERZEHBRERH
R BRI A B IR G RREETS o

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, there

were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or

transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to

recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy

at the end of the reporting period in which they occur.



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(i)

BREYENDEBETE @

HERER

R-_FE—t&F=A=+—8 "
MR BB MR R E R E YR
BB FEAERM — B
HEETGEERARAR(HEE
ITHEBEBAEMBGER
SEZE®  BYHWEGBZY
EmEMNE RFTEBER AL
B2 A5 EITE RS - &b
ARz TERER] - &
EE B HE{GER R E S @
HMEERE BETHENR

RN

FZERAAEBEFENE
el

AEBRBUREERLE - B
MERFESBAEAR - X
ZRIMELAXRNEREM
HERERENRESBANE
FEEN  NBEREDENR
REE - EANTHERGHA

12 Fixed Assets (continued)
Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

Valuation process

The investment properties in Hong Kong and in the PRC
were revalued at 31 March 2017 by Vigers Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers who have among their staff Fellows of The Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the
location and category of properties being valued, on a
market value basis. Management has discussion with
the valuers on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim

and annual reporting date.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of investment properties was determined
using income capitalisation approach which capitalised
the net rental income of the properties and taking into
account the occupancy rate and reversionary income
potential of properties after the expiry of the current

leases. The significant unobservable inputs are set out

BT - below:
BRI RNEHE HAZNEE
Range of capitalisation rate Range of occupancy rate
REME Investment properties 2017 2016 2017 2016
WSO [SES/ES Commercial properties in Hong Kong 280% —5.00%  2.80% —5.00%  96.8% —100%  96.3% — 100%
AR BRI E Y% Commercial properties in the PRC 6.50% 6.50% 87.93% 100%
UREBNIENE Industrial properties in Hong Kong 4.00% — 4.50%  4.00% — 4.50% 100%  81.1% — 100%

BREMENAAEEFERN
MRKELREER  BREXR(
R R LR -

The fair value measurement of investment properties
is positively correlated to the occupancy rate and

negatively correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Annual Report 2016-2017 Fik

121



B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 BE® 12 Fixed Assets (continued)
(b) } E#@%E’J’ AREBEFTE @) (o) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)
iy FZERAAEEFENE (i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurement
#HE) (Continued)
AFEEANE=ZEBRARBEL The movements during the year in the balance of these
ﬁ%ﬁ’qﬁ@}ﬁﬂ? : Level 3 fair value measurement are as follows:

UREEN R B IREEE

[EE2YES [EEZYES TEYE
Commercial Commercial Industrial
properties properties properties
in Hong Kong in the PRC in Hong Kong
Fr Fr Fr
$°000 $°000 $’000
201554818 At 1 April 2015 14,184,490 47,683 365,790
TEH AR Exchange adjustments = (1,996) =
EE Additions 1,415 - =
AT Cost adjustment (200) = =
N BEFRE Fair value adjustments 412,085 (1,780) 200
20163 H31H At 31 March 2016 14,597,790 43,907 365,990
7201654818 At 1 April 2016 14,597,790 43,907 365,990
E AR Exchange adjustments - (2,503) -
RE Additions 584 - 430
AR Cost adjustment (450) — —
RNAEEFE Fair value adjustments (616,534) 237 (11,980)
7201743 H31H At 31 March 2017 13,981,390 41,641 354,440
BEMEN DR BEARELS Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
AR EEMEERAROZ recognised in the line item “net valuation (losses)/gains
BEYEHE(BE)BFFE] on investment properties” on the face of the consolidated
HERER AFERNEER statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
PR AGEEZ KA income. All the valuation changes recognised in profit or
AEBERBREHERERESR loss for the year arise from the properties held at the end
Bz - ZEEZEHReTE of the reporting period. The valuation changes will only
AEEE 2 LA R A ok E affect the accounting profit or loss but not the cash flow
B MAEEHEBRESREEK of the Group.

=
TR
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE @)

(©

12 Fixed Assets (continued)

YEREFEMNDMAOT : (c) The analysis of net book value of properties
is as follows:
2017 2016
T Fit
$°000 $'000
EEB In Hong Kong

— REFHE — Long leases 118,680 119,101
— HEEE — Medium-term leases 14,287,096 14,918,144

EEBFIN Outside Hong Kong
— HEEE — Medium-term leases 41,641 43,907
14,447,417 15,081,152

Hip EEBHERM KB - KRBT

Ho

MEHBRER  NEBURE
%hﬁﬂ’]#ﬂ NERBEREEFES
75,0007 (ZZF—7~4F :104,0007T) ©

JINE
Gzl

(d)

(e

Other assets comprise furniture, fixtures, equipment and motor

vehicles.

At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of office

equipment held under finance leases of the Group was $75,000

(2016: $104,000).
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

12 EEEE@) 12 Fixed Assets (continued)

() FTEFEULLBASHEHREYE - & (f)  The Group leases out investment properties under operating
LEHESVABREE+SF A H leases. The leases run for an initial period of two to ten years,
EEEEFIPERED  BRAE with an option to renew the lease after that date at which time
BFHIREFEE - HE_ZT—tF all terms are renegotiated. Contingent rentals recognised as
A=+ —HIEFEREBEZTRERAE income in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March 2017
WA # sk A % 7% 7,915,000 7T were $7,915,000 (2016: $13,696,000).

(Z=Z—7<%F : 13,696,0007T) °

NEEHEREEEEMTEHAFE All properties held under operating leases that would otherwise
KREMETENEYE e meet the definition of investment property are classified as
RIREYE - investment property.

REBERBE A BRMLCEEETER The total future minimum lease payments under non-
BREENRERENFEEENT cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:
2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
1A Within 1 year 478,193 547,715
1F&B5FR After 1 year but within 5 years 329,559 569,818
807,752 1,117,533
() EEEF (9) Pledge of assets
RIFEHRKRER - RITERZUAE At the end of the reporting period, fixed assets with carrying
H{E 513,931,765,000 7T ( = & — X value of $13,931,765,000 (2016: $14,551,079,000) were
F : 14,551,079,0007T ) W E & & E pledged to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

1ERER (2RM3E20) °
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13

B S X B

TRIBAREREHBRRFE - B5EE

13 Subsidiaries

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

FRRE SN - TS EMRMIE AT B - Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
Frib ezt
Proportion of ownership interest
MR BL S R AKEW BEXRF F B
AR AR KEE ERTRBERAFE BERER BB DEANE IEEH
Place of Group’s held
incorporation  Particulars of issued effective by the held by
Name of company and operation and paid up capital holding Company subsidiary Principal activity
YR AEER AR Bk 360,000,000 A& 17 50.01%  46.41% 36% MEIREFEER
Associated International Hotels Hong Kong 360,000,000 shares Property investment and
Limited investment holding
Sparkland Investments Limited 8 BRI 100% 100% — BB
Hong Kong 2 shares Investment holding
BHRERAA Bk 2%kt 100% - 100% #HENZEREER
Harkam Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Property and
investment holding
B (ER) BRAF e 1,600,0008% A (7 100% 100% - MERE
Metropolitan (International) Hong Kong 1,600,000 shares Property investment
Limited
Associated International Resorts B 28R AR 17 50.01% - 100% NER
Limited Hong Kong 2 shares Inactive
BEFRAF BE 200,000 7 50.01% - 100% #ERE
Diamond Town Limited Hong Kong 200,000 shares Property investment
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 B2 R @)
TNERP B B B E R A R A Rl A B A
BEREME - ZARIRAEEE—HEEKR
FEIERRIE SR B A ] o JEERRIR R AT 4
mAAB/R49.99% « TREVME B ERHE
BAEENA RIRETEAEERTREE -

(@) FERE

13 Subsidiaries (continued)
The following tables list out the summarised financial information
relating to Associated International Hotels Limited, the only subsidiary
of the Group which has material non-controlling interests. Total
ownership interest held by non-controlling interests was 49.99%. The
summarised financial information presented below represents the

amounts before any inter-company elimination.

(@ Summarised results

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $'000
WA Revenue 661,677 667,214
AEE(EER),/ark (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive
Z2HEWALREE income for the year (159,115) 871,369
FEFEAR AR B A 2 A (Loss)/profit for the year allocated to
NEE(ER),/5 T non-controlling interests (79,544) 435,611
TIEER IR AR E Dividends to non-controlling interests (215,964) (215,964)

b) BEREERE

(b) Summarised assets and liabilities

2017 2016
Fr T

$°000 $'000

IERBEE Non-current assets 14,103,436 14,724,637
MENEE Current assets 542,115 520,621
14,645,551 15,245,258

mEAG Current liabilities (233,323) (449,332)

EmBAaE Non-current liabilities (264,264) (56,847)

(497,587) (506,179)

AEESE NET ASSETS 14,147,964 14,739,079

IEPERR AR B RS A BT A FIAY  Non-controlling interests’ proportionate

BEFETEGDE share of the subsidiary’s net assets 7,072,775 7,368,283
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13 B2 R ) 13 Subsidiaries (continued)
) REeERERE (¢) Summarised cash flows
2017 2016
F5 Fi
$°000 $'000
K EE SRR & FRE Net cash generated from operating
activities 453,268 481,769
W& EBFS, (BT &Y Net cash generated from/(used in)
ReFHE investing activities 29,340 (9,622)
BB EEFTAMIR 2558 Net cash used in financing activities (435,256) (434,534)
WEMEFHE Net cash flows 47,352 37,613
14 FEWRERFK ~ s & RFENARK 14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments
2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
FEUAR R Accounts receivable 13,611 16,358
B RIEEIRAEE Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(P35 4(0) (note 14(b)) (1,575) (1,575)
12,036 14,783
HIEISSEE Deposits and prepayments 10,622 6,743
22,658 21,526
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FEWERSK - AT KA K@

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)

(@) BRERDMT (@) Ageing analysis
E’\#&Eziﬁﬂ &R &ER @ 831 EWER The ageing analysis of accounts receivable (net of allowance
SHED S ENAEN L E TN for bad and doubtful debts) which was included in accounts
?D S RIEBREE BRI DT T ¢ receivable, deposits and prepayments as of the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

2017 2016

T Tt

$°000 $'000

R HA Current 10,051 13,195

wED A E A Less than 1 month past due 1,190 1,474

#EA1 2= 3{E A 1 to 3 months past due 779 54

EEAFRE3ME BB 28 H  More than 3 months but less than

12 months past due 16 54

B HARR A1 21 H More than 12 months past due - 6

B Amounts past due 1,985 1,588

12,036 14,783

RE—MRESAEREH  BERRER
H—RABTRETHX  BHSEK
S - AEBEEBRREMAESISE
HHiEE24(a) ©

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Debts are generally due on the 1st day of each month and
10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or else interest will be
charged. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out
in note 24(a).



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 FEWERSK - AT R K@

(b)

PR SRR B
AEERREREEEEEHOT

14 Accounts Receivable, Deposits and
Prepayments continued)

(b)

Impairment of accounts receivable
The movement in the specific allowance for bad and doubtful

debts during the year is as follows:

2017 2016

Fr T

$°000 $'000

1K2016/2015F4A1H At 1 April 2016/2015 1,575 1,252
B ERREEE Impairment losses recognised 17 323
B H N AT E 25 Uncollectible amounts written off (17) =
M3H31H At 31 March 1,575 1,575

R=ZFT—+tHF=A=+—8 ' [E
u&ﬁé R E R FET R R (E &Y
M A1,575,00070 (=& — <& ¢
157500075) c A BEHER
H) R 58 BR 7 TE % 8 /2 1,575,000 7T

(ZZ—/%F : 1,575,0007C) °

TR {EL Y FE WA B K
1B KB B AR AR A O e YR
HEBRE AT :

At 31 March 2017, the accounts receivable of $1,575,000
(2016: $1,575,000) was individually determined to be impaired.
Consequently, specific allowance for bad and doubtful debts of

$1,575,000 (2016: $1,575,000) was recognised.

Accounts receivable that are not impaired
The ageing analysis of accounts receivable that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

2017 2016
Fr T
$°000 $'000
R HAER B RE Neither past due nor impaired 10,051 13,195
#ER DR E A Less than 1 month past due 1,190 1,474
#EA1 2= 31E B 1 to 3 months past due 779 54

BHAARE3ME AE D128 More than 3 months but less than
12 months past due 16 54
wHIR A28 A More than 12 months past due - 6
1,985 1,588
12,036 14,783
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B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

14 ERER ~ sl KA K@ 14
© TR 1B Y FE LU BR K (4

REHOR AR E A ARG B
R B RRENERERES

ERMELARERNBUIRRBER
EAREEE RS FRHERN—RBL
BEF - BRERR  REAELR
HRNEEERYEEANE - AW
RRIEG S 28URE - FTAEA
mutaﬂzﬁﬁxgﬁ g

15 2EMBITER 15
%:?*t¢&:?*ﬁ¢2ﬁ2+*a’
TEHE AEE - LAER—SIEFEHRT
E’]fE BER(2HM5E20) -

Accounts Receivable, Deposits and

Prepayments continued)

(c) Accounts receivable that are not impaired
(Continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history

of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.

Pledged Bank Deposits
At 31 March 2017 and 2016, bank deposits were pledged to a

designated bank to secure the bank loan (see note 20).

16 BWERIREEEY 16 Cash and Cash Equivalents
2017 2016
F T
$'000 $'000
HRITETER Deposits with banks 393,142 337,973
SRITFEHREIES Cash at bank and in hand 37,688 42,812
430,830 380,785
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

17

18

19

HiEARRETER 17 Other Payables and Accruals
RZE—+tF=A=+—H  FraHMmER As at 31 March 2017, all of the other payables and accruals are
RN EFEREN—FRNEM  c R expected to be settled within one year. As at 31 March 2016, all of
—RNE=ZA=1+—H ' % T732,000TTE:t the other payables and accruals were expected to be settled within
RiBBE—FEBRIN - T HEMEN R E one year except for $32,000 which was expected to be settled after
SAEREGR—FREN - more than one year.
2WET£ 18 Deposits Received
B T 122,230,000 ot ( — & — X &F All of the deposits received are expected to be settled within one year
155,515,0007T ) 851 & FE 5T R BB — F 14 except for $122,230,000 (2016: $155,515,000) which is expected to
BN FTEEWETTE R —F BT - be settled after more than one year.
REHIRE €% 19 Provision for Long Service Payments
Fr
$°000
M2016F4H1H At 1 April 2016 1,581
IR B AE Provision written back for the year (40)
FERER Payment made during the year (28)
201743 H318 At 31 March 2017 1,513

REEE(RBIED) - AEBEAEBL R
hFHNENBTREBAGRE - ERLER
TWREH—EMNK - BENESRREHET
RENFE MRBEY - BERARERK
AEINRAREELNERSETE - A%
B354 5 B R T B E R EARIRER D
B e

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to employees who have completed at least five years
of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent on
the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan that is
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does not

set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

20

IRITER — BIRH
R-ZT—+FE=F=+—8  RBITEZNE
AR

20 Bank Loan — Secured

At 31 March 2017, the bank loan was repayable as follows:

2017 2016

Fr Tt

$°000 $'000

1R Within 1 year - 200,000
1F&E2F A After 1 year but within 2 years - =
2F1Z{B5F A After 2 years but within 5 years 200,000 —
200,000 —

200,000 200,000

R=ZZT—=F+A+tH8  ARAHK B
A — BB EAR A A E R
71513 7 — 17 A $£ 300,000,000 7T K9 @t &
W@ e  RZE—X"ENA=1+A8H ' &
BABEZBITII L — D RHE - 5
MEHBRER=FE-_T—AF+ AN
A -ZBTRHERN—HEEETETE
BE (2R E12(9) M E — B A E
mRETFRITFR(2HME15) HHE—
ZERENESERER KT —+
F=RA=+—8 XEENRTEXRAE
200,000,0007%( =Z—7<4F :200,000,0007T) ©

ZMEARMRITREAEBITRZNER
AIE THA PBIORR L R BRI 1R
JTREERA - WAKREAE —ERRENX
F o WZMB AR RZERN - AR
HMEREECRINERRE - AREEEY
ERRRENAELEE R_T—tFR
—ERF=ZA=1—8  ZMBRRLE
EREMERREEABNRE

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

On 7 October 2013, the Company’s subsidiary, Associated
International Hotels Limited, entered into a facility agreement with
a bank for banking facilities of up to $300,000,000. On 30 August
2016, the subsidiary entered into a supplemental agreement with the
bank for extension of the facilities for three years to 8 October 2019.
The banking facilities were secured by a debenture incorporating a
first fixed legal charge over certain fixed assets (see note 12(g)) and
a first floating charge over certain bank deposits (see note 15). At
31 March 2017, the outstanding bank loan was $200,000,000
(2016: $200,000,000).

The subsidiary’s banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the subsidiary’s consolidated
statement of financial position ratios and maintenance of capital at
certain required levels. If the subsidiary were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The
Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. As at
31 March 2017 and 2016, none of the covenants relating to drawn

down facilities had been breached.



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

21 BEERERIE 21 Obligations under Finance Leases
NR-ZTB—+E=A=+—H0 KE£EEHNHE At 31 March 2017, the Group had obligations under finance leases
FREAEREFIBWOT ¢ repayable as follows:

2017 2016

RIEHES RIEHESE
NRERE AREEH

RERE REHE
NFBRE (REEH

Present Present

value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
Fr Fr T+t Tt
$000 $°000 $000 $000
1R Within 1 year 29 29 29 29
1FBE2FRN After 1 year but within 2 years 29 29 29 29
2F B B5FA After 2 years but within 5 years 17 17 46 46
46 46 75 75
75 75 104 104

B BEFIESXH  Less: Total future interest expense
FEE - =
FEAENIRE Present value of lease obligations 75 104
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

22 BENBFH(E 22 Government Lease Premiums Payable
RZZE—+E=A=+—08 " ENRFHE At 31 March 2017, the government lease premiums payable was
REFRERAE - repayable as follows:

2017 2016
Fr Tt
$°000 $000

1ERN(BIEEHMERNZE  Within 1 year (amount included in

EETERAA) other payables and accruals) 60 57
1618825 K After 1 year but within 2 years 63 60
2F B B5FNA After 2 years but within 5 years 208 198
55 1% After 5 years 1,649 1,722

1,920 1,980

1,980 2,037
FETERAT HU B T Bt R (BB R R LA E B Interest on government lease premiums payable is chargeable at a
FEEE (=B —/NF : 5F)EtHE - fixed rate of 5% (2016: 5%) per annum on the outstanding balance.
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23 ié\ZIKKzﬁ%{% 23 Capital and Reserves

T A AR ER o By B (@ Movements in components of equity

$% RE R FEARE S & H
EREIR A SR EBR - DIE N AEE

EEREBR - ARAIRFEVNEFLKLE

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out

in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of

1851148 2 485K 2B 5 WO BY F 1B 51 E an the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
N between the beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:
ViN/NC] The Company
;&S @A B
Share Retained
capital earnings Total
Fx Fr T
$°000 $°000 $°000
R2015F481HH Balance at 1 April 2015
REER 121,830 425,085 546,865
E R A & Profit and total comprehensive
2HEMALREE income for the year = 203,819 203,819
BRE—HHEE Dividends approved in respect of
RS the previous financial year — (109,188) (109,188)
BRRYBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAIAEE the current financial year — (109,188) (109,188)
M2016%3H31HAK  Balance at 31 March 2016 and
20165F4A1HK 1 April 2016
fHER 121,830 410,478 532,308
ARF A & Profit and total comprehensive
EHEWALE income for the year - 189,585 189,585
BR E—UHFE Dividends approved in respect of
AR E the previous financial year - (109,188) (109,188)
BRAYVBFEE Dividends declared in respect of
FIRAIZE the current financial year - (109,188) (109,188)
M20175E3A31HK  Balance at 31 March 2017
REER 121,830 381,687 503,517
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

TN (b) Share capital
2017 2016
R EE havar 4=
Number of T Number of FIT
shares $°000 shares $'000

ERTRAR : Issued and fully paid:

A7 Shares 474,731,824 121,830 474,731,824 121,830
BIEEB(RTHEGIYE135E - A A In accordance with section 135 of the Hong Kong Companies
AR DI EEE © Ordinance, the shares of the Company have no nominal value.
BRDFEE AAREWE T TR The holders of shares are entitled to receive dividends as
8 WAlEAARAE FHEFEE K declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per
B —= « WRARQFHFEHE share at meetings of the Company. All shares rank equally with
B ARG ZEE RSk - regard to the Company’s residual assets.
FEENMENAZR (c) Nature and purpose of reserves
ENREERENEFECERANES The revaluation reserve represents hotel properties revaluation
VEBHBBRNREMYESHER - surpluses and other properties revaluation surplus recognised
ZBECERARRELS - {EENE in prior years. The hotel has been redeveloped into iISQUARE.
BEEBYERZ  TAHRBENEGHAES Upon the retirement or disposal of the properties, any related
ShEGHEBEAMRBRT o tHEE revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to
T RAIDIREY © retained earnings. The reserve is non-distributable.

AR D IR {#E (d) Distributability of reserves
R-ZE—+F=A=+—H ' B At 31 March 2017, the aggregate amount of reserves
EBCABIEDYFE6 M EETED available for distribution to equity shareholders of the

A 5K T N 7 HE & AR R 60 4 AR
%8 /4108,025,0007C ( =& — /RN F ¢
123,197,0007T ) - E= g R R E H
MEFERRESZ S RARARSER
0.237T(=F—/"F : §&0.237T) -
A #£109,188,000L (=& — /N F -
109,188,0007T) (Mi5E10) ° ELEAR S
R IR E B M AERARE -

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

Company, as calculated under the provisions of Part 6 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, was $108,025,000
(2016: $123,197,000). After the end of the reporting period
the Directors proposed a final dividend of $0.23 per share
(2016: $0.23 per share), amounting to $109,188,000
(2016: $109,188,000) (note 10). This dividend has not been

recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting period.



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

23

I

\
b

©

PANSEER Y

BEXEE
AEEEREANTERNRRER
SEFEKCENEE N KMFES LA
Y MET E SRRk T AR TR RO AR 7% B
BARABIEKABGREN T
BEDERIRRTERER  WAEM
HHEAA THH M

REBTHHRANETREELEALHE
BRI B AR ®HERUK T EF R
=k B BlRE - BIB@EE AR
HRMEZMRERSEE - WARE
KBRS N M AL ARG - R

—tERZE—RF=A=1+—
BIEFE - ANEERZEEREERST

B4&Z B ARRYEEEMAE
% FRBEHEAABLERER S
MEBRRERHEERLERE o stk
s AKEBARATEAABHER
IRITER ARG A TR R
I EmEE RZT—tF
ZA=1t—B AEENELXEE
HEEAE1.4%(ZF—RF : 1.3%) -
MIRTTEREREBBIBITERE
BE £ 365,811,000 (=& — /R F ¢
342,576,0007T) °

W

23 Capital and Reserves (continued)

(e

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for equity shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by leasing properties and
pricing services commensurately with the level of risk and by

securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
to maintain a balance between the higher member returns that
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions. The Group’s overall strategy
remained unchanged during the years ended 31 March 2017
and 2016.

The Group monitors its capital structure by reviewing its gearing
ratio and cash flow requirements, taking into account its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this purpose, the
Group defines gearing ratio as total bank loan over total equity
as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position. As
at 31 March 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio was 1.4% (2016:
1.3%) with bank deposits and cash exceeding total bank loan
of $365,811,000 (2016: $342,576,000).
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(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIEREERAALEE
AEBSEIEFESBEFLEEEE 7D
B FIRMEERR -

BRAREEMAERNRRE - ARAEERNA
BEZSRARNPIERREEBRMNE MK
VEBLIAT o

(@ EERMRE
AEENEERREZREEKRE
Ko BEBEECEREERE AT
ETESRFTEASHEERRE -

LMW 5 - HRA A BRI
BB-—E2BEENTF  A5HE
SELERNEERE - ZIERPF
BEPBEEREIMRAENTCENE
RIEEERE ) Y EEREPEEER
HAEEPRLMEMNRKERE - R
H—RESAERIE  ERERA
—RBTRETHEX - BHSEEH
B ARESHEEENER THEaM
RAFBEHEARBERTE) - REEK
REFRI 2 (218 1EREUSE
HEE M -

AEEVTESEREERARETNE
Mo DEFEPRHEM G - REB A
XHEERR ERAMBAAKRSTE
Be@EEMERTE(SIHRRESE
) o AEBW | H A B K E A
EEERBREEMER -

A B 5% B X e M AR R T E AE (R R R
AN EME(CRE - AR
14
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24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in

the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage

these risks are described below.

(@ Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to accounts
receivable. Management has a credit policy in place and the

exposure to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of accounts receivable, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Debts are generally due on the 1st day of
each month and 10 to 14 days are allowed for settlement or
else interest will be charged. Legal action will be taken against
past due debtors whenever the situation is appropriate. The
Group obtains deposits from customers (see note 18) as

collateral over accounts receivable.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group

to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable are set

out in note 14.
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B TS L

P EIE KA REE@m

REBNE EE

REBEMBREEHERERNEST
MRBELENR UNBETETER

Hih o MARERTRNREHE - F
FRERTTARIRHE R ANEER - U
mRESMREANRBESTK

TERFVAKEZITESBBER
BEHEREBRNRERE N B HIFK
B ZEFEBENATERERERE
(“%EDAA%’U%‘J%EHEE@ﬁiEﬁF‘EEHZ

//

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and an adequate amount of committed banking facilities

to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted

cash flows (including interest payments computed using

HRERFE(EZE)TE/AF] contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
,%'\ H PO ERAEBEEZKE BB end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can
k=g be required to pay:
2017
RRARR 18R ha ks Bigok
BEE RERBEE  HERAR BopeE BoHsE BiB5F
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5years 5years
Tr Tr Tr T Tr Tr
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
HfofERZ R EtER Other payables and accruals 23,358 23,381 23,381 - - -
BT Deposits received 198,359 198,359 76,129 87,940 34,200 -
AEREAE Obligations under finance leases 75 75 29 29 17 -
FITEF —BHA  Bankloan — secured 200,000 206,284 2,493 2,493 201,298 -
ENBRE Government lease premiums
payable 1,920 3,018 - 159 4 2,382
423,712 31,117 102,082 90,621 236,082 2,382
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BB EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIERBEERAAEE@E 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values
(Continued)
(b) REBE SRR @ (b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

2016
RUATR 1ERE aselka ey Erka
FEHE AERERE  RERAR {Brmes {BHReF i85

Total More than More than

contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than less than More than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
7 7 7 7 7 7
$000 $000 $:000 $:000 $000 $000
AthEMFREER Other payables and acoruals 25,85 25,878 25,846 ® - -
BT Deposits received 207,401 207,401 51,886 70,097 85,418 -
BEMEAE Obligations under finance leases 104 104 29 29 46 =
FOEF—EHE  Bankloan — secured 200,000 201,065 201,065 - - =

EBE Government lease premiums

payable 1,980 3177 - 169 477 2,541
435,340 437,625 278,826 70317 8594 2,541
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BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIERBEERAAEE@E 24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(c)

PN
AEENNXEREZRERTE
o FRHIRITEREREBAEAT
REnENEER AEBEEERES
KM BRI T (P -

() FIEBR
TRFNREHELEAR
SEAEREAEARNEER R
BB KA EBLR, -

(Continued)
Interest rate risk

(©

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily arises from bank loan.

The bank loan borrowed at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as

monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the

Group’s borrowings with significant interest rate risk

exposure at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016
BRAIE ielTIES
Effective Effective
interest rate T interest rate Tt
% $°000 % $'000
EEMEN Fixed rate borrowings:
FEEFHE  Government lease
premiums payable 5.00 1,980 5.00 2,037
FEMER Variable rate borrowings:
RITER Bank loan — secured
— FHEH 1.25 200,000 1.03 200,000
Fkc) Total 201,980 202,037
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

24 BIEEREERALEE@

(©)

) == [ ez (4m)
iy BEEDW

R=_FE—t&=A=+—8 "
HEtE R E LR L TR50
—E—RF:25)E% ik
BTG B fth o] & A =M T
1% A L3800, R D A S B RRE
BB IR & T
#98385,0007T (ZF— /R F : &
b 48 NN R R B R 0 )
1RB&F#9418,0007T ) °

FIRBRE SRR EEH)
(ﬁ%aﬁ&i%ﬁ%%a%
REEEER(ZE
— " m&mﬂﬂﬂﬁm
A BV BN L o REARE B PR
AENREHARKERIEZ
BHEMTETAEMEENE SR
EBHNEREREMNES  NEERB
‘ER(ZE—XRE : KE®R
) (FRB&mF) M2 B R IRZ
MEEHHFEZTHNFEL
HEELEE c EEOMEIR

T NFHRRMEELETT

B E R
MR AEEBARH R BB
8« A WAREARINERR o

J
REBOMESBITAHAELR
T tFR_F-AF=A=t+—H
WARBETSAEAZEZNERET

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

24 Financial Risk Management and Fair Values

(Continued)

(©

(d)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 March 2017, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 (2016: 25) basis points in
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s loss after
tax and decreased/increased the retained profits by
approximately $835,000 (2016: decreased/increased
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by

approximately $418,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (2016: profit after
tax) (and retained profits) that would arise assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the
end of the reporting period. In respect of the exposure
to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact on the Group’s loss
after tax (2016: profit after tax) (and retained profits) is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense
of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is

performed on the same basis for 2016.

Currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as

substantially all of the Group’s transactions are denominated in

Hong Kong dollars.

Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair values as at 31 March 2017 and 2016.



BB EHEE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LAB % 3I7R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

25

26

BEERNKEF
AEEIRBEBCGRFIIEATESETEIEHIDE
RE - RREBES(ERGOIDIERNESR
SR HIMEAE B ([RERETE]) - %4
BT EIRABM A ZEA BN R MK
RIRETE - BEBERESHE - EXFEE
YRR IE B BB A B B5% AT 8 EH 4
;i BEEAMEBA S LR A30,0007T ©
Bros MR - A EEWIRRE L B 247
% A 230,000 T FI5% 1EH B FEIEfE3K ;1B
&S S A A E40,000 T AR © MarE
TER B S IEHR AR B E B EA - A
FHEIEL R B R MR - RIERE S TR
WERT NMEEFRERNFREER 7S
BREER - BEZITHERESHIEFTR
MEEEMERESMNE INAEERER
Wir A B R E A R E AR R -

RAFER @ WERSROER B EREAR
SEEMNHZK(ZZ—/]F : 58,0007T) °
REZ—tF=A=+—H  AEE{HER
B SUR A TR A1 ,0007T (Z B — /N4 : ) o

EIE
R-ZT—+tF=A=+—HRENTKRE
BT TRR N EARENT ¢

25 Employee Retirement Benefits

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administrated by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
$30,000. In addition to the mandatory contribution, the Group makes
voluntary contribution at 5% of the employees’ monthly relevant
income in excess of $30,000, subject to a maximum monthly income
of $40,000. Mandatory contributions to the plan vest immediately
while voluntary contributions to the plan vest at the time the
employees reach the retirement range, subject to certain conditions.
The staff costs in respect of staff employed by DTZ for building and
property management of iISQUARE are reflected in the Group’s
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

During the year, no forfeited contributions (2016: $58,000) was utilised
to reduce the contributions payable for the year. Unutilised forfeited
contributions of $1,000 (2016: Nil) had yet to be applied by the Group
at 31 March 2017.

Commitments
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 March 2017 not provided for

in the financial statements were as follows:

2017 2016

Fr Tt

$°000 $'000

EEES) Contracted for 611 —
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B HKXHE Notes to the Financial Statements
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 R—ZE—tHFE=B=+—H
ERARBENITBR K

27 Company-level Statement of Financial
Position at 31 March 2017

2017 2016
BasE F Tt
Note $°000 $’'000
FREBEE Non-current assets
EE&E Fixed assets
— KRB — Investment properties 304,360 317,550
B AR A Interest in subsidiaries 182,242 182,617
486,602 500,167
RBEE Current assets
FEWERR ~ 5] RIBFEK Accounts receivable, deposits and
prepayments 1,005 824
Be NEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 41,753 40,883
AEAREM TS HR Current tax recoverable 315 =
43,073 41,707
REBAE Current liabilities
HivEN R RETER Other payables and accruals 6,135 4,887
BUGET & Deposits received 2,508 2,424
N AN E T Current tax payable - 257
8,643 7,568
REBEERE Net current assets 34,430 34,139
EEAERABERS Total assets less current liabilities 521,032 534,306
ERBERE Non-current liabilities
JE B B A B FE Amount due to a subsidiary 16,421 951
BLEHIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 1,094 1,047
17,515 1,998
EEFE NET ASSETS 503,517 532,308

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T



B ZFME Notes to the Financial Statements

(L% % %|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

27 AZZ—t&E=A=+—H 27 Company-level Statement of Financial

ERAREHENMEARR T @

Position at 31 March 2017 (continued)

2017 2016
5T F Tt
Note $°000 $°000

ERRFHE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23

[EEN Share capital 23(b) 121,830 121,830

E] Reserves 381,687 410,478

e TOTAL EQUITY 503,517 532,308

FEeRN T —tF A=+ /\BZELF

Al o
FF BE
ErEE SEWE
28 HERRQARMRARIZEERL 28

ExZeRR AEER_ZT—LtF=A
=+ ANERBARRRRERTRES
BRI RIEER DA © WLARRER
A HARNFHRE ©

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
28 June 2017.

Cheong Hooi Hong Cheong Kheng Lim

Director Director

Immediate Parent and Ultimate Controlling
Party

At 31 March 2017, the Directors consider the immediate parent and
ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Tian Teck Investment
Holding Co., Limited, which is incorporated in Hong Kong. This entity

does not produce financial statements available for public use.
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BB EHME Notes to the Financial Statements
(L% %%|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

29

EHREBEEBE-ZT—LtF
:ﬁ:+—5¢¢fﬁ*$
MBVEET ~ FERAFEERN
AR
%§$%Wﬁ%¥ﬁ5%'§%ﬁ%%Q
BEREABANRERE-F—LF=A
=t LR RAREANE R
RANESTANER o BERAR(CaET
S B RAREE A -

29 Possible Impact of Amendments, New
Standards and Interpretations Issued But
Not Yet Effective for the Year Ended
31 March 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA
has issued a few amendments and new standards which are not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2017 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.

EUTESSz%
BHRHEHBEXR
Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

(BEgtE

(BB EFTERDE12RMERTI FEH - MRRREREIEMELS

HEER AR EE |

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes: Recognition of deferred tax assets

for unrealised losses

(BB REER]NFR(2014F )[R T A |

HKFRS 9 (2014), Financial instruments

(BEUBRE

(BEVBRELER)E 165 HE ]
HKFRS 16, Leases

ADE7THRMERIRERER : WEAE

Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure initiative

ERIDFEASIE[ EZ P T A R H) KA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

20171 A1H
1 January 2017

2017F1H1H

1 January 2017

201841 A1H

1 January 2018

20181 A1H
1 January 2018

20191 A1H
1 January 2019

BRANE LAS FT AT R B A AR & I S R 8
REAFZEHAREETK -

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T

The adoption of these amendments and new standards is unlikely to

have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.



AFMBHE

Five Year Financial Summary
(L% 35|R) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

E 5 Results
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
T T T T Fr
$°000 $'000 $°000 $'000 $°000
PN Revenue 527,502 617,159 656,904 680,544 673,445
REWMEME Profit/(loss) from operations
BEBNSE after valuation changes in
BF(EE) investment properties 2,864,156 1,508,170 1,415,998 968,983 (76,061)
EE= VDN Finance costs (2,257) (3,048) (2,398) (2,458) (3,374)
BBIAT SR (E58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 2,861,899 1,505,122 1,413,600 966,525 (79,435)
PSR Income tax (69,644) (83,985) (88,526) (91,948) (90,721)
REEHRN(BE) Profit/(loss) for the year 2,792,255 1,421,137 1,325,074 874,577 (170,156)
TH AL : Attributable to:
— NEESARER — Equity shareholder of
the Company 1,425,698 730,105 679,995 438,966 (90,612)
— JEIEARRR B MEZE  — Non-controlling interests 1,366,557 691,032 645,079 435,611 (79,544)
2,792,255 1,421,137 1,325,074 874,577 (170,156)
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A FHMEBE Five Year Financial Summary
(LB % 5IR) (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

EEREE Assets and Liabilities
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Fx T T Fx T
$000 $°000 $'000 $°000 $000
TERE Fixed assets 12,833,486 13,811,077 14,684,074 15,086,623 14,449,891
Hh B ARE Other investments in securities/
A E2EES  available-for-sale equity
securities 7,103 9,391 — — —
mE(BE)  EBE  Netcurrent (labilities)/assets
FE (19,926) 233,592 260,748 105,886 345,610
12,820,663 14,054,060 14,944,822 15,192,509 14,795,501
IRITER — A Bank loan — secured = (200,000) (200,000) = (200,000)
JE (< BT (B Government lease premiums
payable (2,143) (2,091) (2,037) (1,980) (1,920)
BT E AR Obligations under finance leases 38) @) (104) (75) (46)
FEERIBEE Deferred tax liabilities (34,280) (41,692) (49,220) (56,756) (64,333)
EEFE NET ASSETS 12,784,202 13,810,273 14,693,461 15,133,698 14,529,202
f&AS : EE Share capital: nominal value 118,683 = — — —
B EEENFEE Other statutory capital reserves 3,147 = = = —
AR AN R Bt VA TE Share capital and other statutory
BN capital reserves 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830 121,830
Eoh R Other reserves 6,435,917 6,968,922 7,422,995 7,643,585 7,334,597
6,557,747 7,090,752 7,544,825  7,765/415 7,456,427
FE R R RS Non-controlling interests 6,226,455 6,719,521 7,148,636 7,368,283 7,072,775
ERAR TOTAL EQUITY 12,784,202 13,810,273 14,693,461 15,133,698 14,529,202

Tian Teck Land Limited XZE#tZEHR A T
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